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          2                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Good morning. I'm

          3  sorry that I'm late. Since we don't have a quorum

          4  yet, we're going to go to two items on the agenda.

          5  One is Intro. 502-A, an amendment to the lobbying

          6  law, but we can't throw it on that right now, so

          7  we're going to go to the second item, which has to

          8  do with the Campaign Finance Board, and then once we

          9  get a quorum, we'll go back.

         10                 Good morning, again. I don't know if

         11  I said it the first time. Good morning. For the

         12  duration of today's hearing, the Committee will

         13  examine the New York City Campaign Finance Board

         14  audit practices and procedures.

         15                 On December 7th, 2006, this Committee

         16  conducted an oversight hearing on the Board's Report

         17  on the 2005 Elections. Public Dollars for the Public

         18  Good, a report on the 2005 elections. And as a

         19  result of the dialogue of the hearing and further

         20  input, that the City Council received after that

         21  hearing from Council Members, practitioners, and

         22  others appearing before the Board, the Committee has

         23  further questions about the Board's auditing

         24  process, specifically issues regarding the duration

         25  of the Board's audits, process and candidates'
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          2  receipt of audits, the Board's method of conducting

          3  audits, candidates' methods for disputing audits,

          4  audits both formally and informally, and the Board's

          5  training on how to respond to the audit, including

          6  distributed materials.

          7                 The City's Campaign Finance Program

          8  is considered one of the most successful Campaign

          9  Finance systems in the Nation, and this Committee is

         10  charges with oversight powers to ensure that it

         11  continues to live up to that reputation.

         12                 The Committee looks forward to

         13  hearing from the Board and other witnesses, and

         14  listening to their testimony about this.

         15                 Ultimately, the Committee hopes to

         16  receive a deeper understanding of the Board's audit

         17  process, and obtain constructive feedback about how,

         18  if at all, to reform that process to ensure that the

         19  Program remains a model campaign finance system.

         20                 Before we begin with the testimony,

         21  as I have mentioned at previous hearings, I know

         22  that the issue of campaign finance is an issue of

         23  great importance to all the council members, and all

         24  of the City's elected officials, in fact, I was

         25  about to say by the presence of Council Member Inez
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          2  Dickens, that shows you how important it is.  That's

          3  it, it doesn't matter what other hearings are going

          4  on at City Hall, the fact that Council Member

          5  Dickens is at this hearing shows how important it

          6  is.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS:  Very

          8  important.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Yes, you saved

         10  me.  Because I'm reading the testimony, and I'm

         11  reading about great importance, and I'm the only one

         12  here besides you, so you saved me.  But it is

         13  important, it is important.

         14                 We're going to do this  --  the

         15  opening statement, we're going to do this again at

         16  the end of the hearing.

         17                 However, I would request that any

         18  colleagues that are here  --  so before we start,

         19  let me just say  --  let me make a statement that I

         20  think it's true for most of us that

         21  we, despite appreciating everything that the

         22  Campaign Finance Board does, and with the utmost

         23  respect, both for the Board and for people running

         24  campaign finance board's, the fact that it does such

         25  an important job means that we have to make sure
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          2  that they do it better and better.  There's nothing

          3  that's perfect.

          4                 Today's hearing is not about me or

          5  any of my colleagues, or any practitioners getting

          6  up and attacking the Board for things that they like

          7  or don't like.  You can do that any time you want,

          8  but do it in person at the Board, not here. The

          9  purpose of today's hearing is really to see what

         10  ways we can improve the work that they do, and I

         11  know many of you won't believe it, but the hearing

         12  that we're having today is as a result of

         13  discussions that we had together with the Chair, and

         14  the people at the Board.

         15                 I would dare say that they asked me

         16  to have the hearing, but they would deny that.  But,

         17  they're very happy about today's hearing, and I hope

         18  at the end of the hearing as well, that they will be

         19  happy because the purpose is to work together, to

         20  come up with items that will be of help both to

         21  candidates who want to participate, who have had bad

         22  experiences, and that's the case anywhere with

         23  anything, and both vice versa.

         24                 So, I just want to say that we

         25  appreciate very, very much that the Chair, Mr.
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          2  Schwarz, is here, and the new Executive Director,

          3  Amy Loprest is here and will be testifying shortly

          4  on these and other items.

          5                 With that, I just want to introduce

          6  the Counsel to the Committee, DeNora Johnson, who is

          7  on my left, and Michael Casatano, who is my

          8  Legislative Aid.  We have guests.  Robert Newman,

          9  who is the Legal Counsel to the City Council is not

         10  here, but he sent Noran Kamp (phonetic) who works

         11  together with him, to spy on me to make sure that we

         12  do everything right, and I appreciate the confidence

         13  that he has in me. With that, we're ready to start

         14  the testimony.

         15                 If Mr. Schwarz and Ms. Loprest are

         16  ready, or anybody else? Before we start the hearing,

         17  I just want to introduce one of our colleagues,

         18  Council Member Oliver Koppell who just joined us.

         19                 Thank you for coming in this weather.

         20                 MR. SCHWARZ:  Okay, I wonder if

         21  Council Member Koppell and Dickens have the

         22  testimony?

         23                 Usually I just speak extemporaneously

         24  but this time I'm going to use most of the testimony

         25  because I think it's all very focused and very
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          2  helpful.

          3                 We are happy to be here.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Even though

          5  everyone knows who you are, if every witness can

          6  mention their name.

          7                 MR. SCHWARZ:  I am Fritz Schwarz.  I

          8  am Chair of the City Campaign Finance Board.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Can everyone at

         10  the table introduce themselves?

         11                 MR. PEELE:  Julius Peele, Director of

         12  Auditing and Accounting.

         13                 MS. LOPREST:  Amy Loprest, the

         14  Executive Director of the Campaign Finance Board.

         15                 MS. CAMPOLO:  Carol Campolo, Deputy

         16  Executive Director.

         17                 MR. SCHWARZ:  So, we had a very

         18  stimulating hearing the last time, and it's

         19  enjoyable to work with you, Mr. Chairman.

         20                 I hope that there would be fruitful

         21  results from this hearing, and also from the

         22  legislation that's being considered.

         23                 Since the first election conducted

         24  under the Campaign Finance Program, which was in

         25  1989, the CFB has distributed more than 95 million
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          2  to 719 campaigns for city office.  In exchange for

          3  that public financing, the ACT, the Campaign Finance

          4  Act places conditions on its use.

          5                 While all candidates must observe

          6  limits on the size and sources of contributions,

          7  campaigns that seek taxpayer funds must observe

          8  restrictions on the way they are spent, and on the

          9  total amount of their spending.

         10                 Campaigns must also provide full and

         11  detailed records of all funds raised and spent.  The

         12  Program requires campaigns to file timely

         13  disclosures of their finances with the CFB.  After

         14  each election, the CFB conducts thorough audits of

         15  all campaigns, which accomplish three primary

         16  purposes, and toward the end of my testimony I'm

         17  going to speak about how the Board has improved its

         18  audit timing.

         19                 But the first thing the audits do is

         20  help safeguard public funds, and ensure that they

         21  are used properly.

         22                 When violations are found, the Board

         23  assesses penalties or requires repayment of taxpayer

         24  funds.  The Board has recovered over $2 million for

         25  the taxpayers in penalties and repayments from
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          2  the`01 and`03 election cycles alone, and in those

          3  two elections, CFB audits uncovered 12 cases of

          4  fraud and misrepresentations, some of which have

          5  resulted in jury convictions.

          6                 The second thing the audits do is to

          7  help guarantee the quality of campaign finance

          8  information that the Board provides to the public.

          9                 Actually, New York City has the best

         10  disclosure system in the Nation, and certainly far

         11  better than your brothers and sisters in the State.

         12                 Last but not least, the comprehensive

         13  audits performed by CFB staff ensure that the

         14  election campaigns are run on a level playing field.

         15    If a violation goes undiscovered, a campaign that

         16  does not comply with the Act may gain a competitive

         17  advantage against an opponent that more completely

         18  observes the law.  That is why every campaign is

         19  given the same high level of scrutiny.

         20                 Because of the culture of enforcement

         21  established by nearly 20 years of practice, and

         22  because that culture encourages the vast majority of

         23  campaigns to make good- faith efforts to comply with

         24  the law, there has been large compliance. To help

         25  campaigns comply with these obligations, CFB staff
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          2  provides detailed guidance, and that was one of the

          3  questions you raised, and of course, we are open to

          4  more elaboration during the testimony.  But staff

          5  provides detailed guidance throughout the campaign,

          6  and through the post- election audit and hearing

          7  process.

          8                 Before the election, the staff of the

          9  Board offers regularly schedules compliance training

         10  sessions for candidates and treasurers.

         11  Representatives from 151 campaigns attended training

         12  sessions during the 2005 election cycle, and another

         13  13 campaigns attended individual training sessions

         14  with staff from the CFB's Candidate Services Unit.

         15                 These training sessions are designed

         16  to familiarize campaign workers with the practical,

         17  day- to- day requirements of eligibility of:

         18  Maintaining basic records, obeying limits on

         19  contributions and expenditures, and they like. They

         20  also familiarize treasurers with the C- SMART

         21  software that campaigns use to disclose their

         22  finances to the CFB.

         23                 Every campaign is assigned a CSU

         24  staff liaison, who is available for consultation by

         25  telephone, in person, and via email.  Starting in

                                                            12

          1  COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS

          2  2006, the Candidate Services Unit has also provided

          3  post- election Audit Training Seminars to assist

          4  campaigns in responding to their draft audits.  To

          5  date, representative from 39 campaigns have taken

          6  part.

          7                 All campaigns are audited, whether

          8  they participate in the Program or not.  While non-

          9  participating candidates are not bound by the

         10  spending limits, audits of non participating

         11  campaigns ensure they are observing the universal

         12  restrictions on the size and sources of

         13  contributions.           Additionally, spending by a

         14  non- participating campaign can trigger additional

         15  public matching funds for an opponent.

         16                 I'll briefly describe the audit

         17  timetable now.

         18                 The audit process begins with the

         19  first disclosure statement filing.  After each

         20  disclosure statement is filed, CFB audit staff

         21  conducts an initial review of each statement.  This

         22  initial review may uncover simple violations, find

         23  invalid matching claims, or determine if the

         24  campaign has met the threshold for public funds.

         25  Campaigns may respond to the issues raised by these

                                                            13

          1  COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS

          2  initial reviews, and make corrections.  This process

          3  is repeated with each disclosure statement, and

          4  campaigns may respond to new issues as well as

          5  previously existing issues when answering those

          6  reviews.

          7                 During the election year, the CFB

          8  conducts site visits to the campaigns, to verify

          9  information the campaign has provided.  During these

         10  visits, CFB staff may review the campaign's

         11  compliance efforts and advise campaign staff on

         12  proper record- keeping.

         13                 In an election year, public funds

         14  payments are made within four days of the applicable

         15  disclosure filing date. While only the most serious

         16  issues result in a denial of public funds, even

         17  within this short four- day time period, the

         18  campaign is given an opportunity to work with CFB

         19  staff to resolve those programs that might block

         20  payment of funds.

         21                 After the four- day review, the

         22  campaign receives a more detailed review of its

         23  statement, including lists of invalid matching

         24  claims, and is given another opportunity to respond.

         25                 After the primary and general
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          2  elections, staff begins post- election audits of

          3  each campaign.  Over the course of the audit, CFB

          4  staff may ask the campaign to provide further

          5  details about its activities.  Most often, these

          6  questions are posed as requests for more

          7  documentation; if a campaign has kept proper records

          8  throughout the campaign, responding should be a

          9  simple task, and usually is.

         10                 During the year after the election,

         11  the campaign received a copy of its Draft Audit

         12  Report, and is then given the opportunity to respond

         13  with additional documentation.  Often a campaign is

         14  able to fix some of its compliance issues; in some

         15  cases, a campaign's response to the Draft Audit can

         16  demonstrate full compliance.

         17                 If a campaign fails to meet the

         18  conditions placed upon the use of taxpayer funds,

         19  there are consequences.  If a campaign finds and

         20  remedies a potential violation before it is found by

         21  the CFB, penalties can usually be avoided.  But in

         22  cases when a campaign fails to respond to potential

         23  violations of the law, penalties are recommended.

         24                 If the campaign still has unresolved

         25  problems after responding to the Draft Audit, a
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          2  preliminary finding of violation is referred to a

          3  committee of CFB staff comprised of personnel from

          4  the Audit, Legal, Candidate Service Unit and Press

          5  Units, representing a broad range of perspectives.

          6                 After the committee meets, the

          7  campaign is notified of any recommended penalties,

          8  and has yet another opportunity to show compliance.

          9                 Throughout the election cycle, the

         10  campaign has many opportunities to respond to

         11  problems that could lead to a finding of violation

         12  before a penalty is assessed and a final audit

         13  reviewed, after the statement reviews, the initial

         14  requests for audit documentation, the Draft Audit,

         15  and the notice of recommended penalties, and more

         16  informally through the site visit or correspondence

         17  with CFB staff, and ultimately, in an appearance

         18  before the Board members.

         19                 In proceedings before the Board,

         20  sometimes the Board agrees with the campaign and

         21  sometimes not.  If the campaign is able to correct

         22  specific items, penalties can be avoided altogether.

         23                 CFB staff strives to complete  --

         24  this is getting to your timing question, Mr.

         25  Chairman  --  CFB staff strives to complete the

                                                            16

          1  COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS

          2  audit process in a timely fashion without

          3  compromising the integrity of the work.  An analysis

          4  of audits for City Council campaigns since 2001

          5  shows that the CFB has been successful.  After each

          6  election, processes have been reviewed and improved,

          7  as we're doing now, and audits have been completed

          8  progressively earlier.

          9                 By the end of 2002, focusing on the

         10  2001 election, the CFB had sent two- thirds or 190

         11  of 283 of the Draft Audits to candidates.  After the

         12  2001 election, Board rules changed to mandate that

         13  Draft Audits be sent to campaigns by the end of the

         14  calendar year following the election "to the extent

         15  practicable." The CFB met that requirement for the

         16  2005 election cycle, with the exception of a small

         17  number of audits involving substantially more

         18  complex issues, completing 196 of 207 audits within

         19  the year.

         20                 Final audits are being completed

         21  earlier as well. By this date four years ago, less

         22  than 30 percent of all campaigns, 83 of 283, had

         23  been issued their final audits from the 2001

         24  campaign.

         25                 As of today, the CFB has issued 105
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          2  final audits, of 200, from the 2005 campaign; more

          3  than half of the campaigns have competed the audit

          4  process.

          5                 I should just interject there, that

          6  frequently between the Draft Audit and the Final

          7  Audit, which is the time when the candidates appear

          8  before the Board if they choose to, the time that is

          9  taken is most often taken because the candidates or

         10  their assistants or counsel want more time.  You

         11  don't get, usually, a hearing that follows the two

         12  weeks after the Draft Audit and the recommended

         13  penalties and so forth have gone out.

         14                 So as you said, Mr. Chairman, the New

         15  York City Campaign Finance Program is viewed as a

         16  model for the Nation, and one of the reasons for

         17  that is the vigilant stewardship of taxpayer funds.

         18  Because of our audit and enforcement experience, CFB

         19  officials have been invited to testify or help

         20  bodies in London, Bosnia and Nigeria just in the

         21  last two years.

         22                 Still, the Program's future depends

         23  on the Board's continued ability to conduct the

         24  governmental oversight necessary to ensure the

         25  proper allocation of taxpayer money.  Public
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          2  financing of elections is a luxury good.  The

          3  benefits the Program provides are important, but not

          4  essential to daily life.

          5                 If the pubic discovers misuse of

          6  funds allocated for sanitation, or fire and police,

          7  taxpayers will demand those vital programs perform

          8  better.  But if the public believes there is waste

          9  or abuse in the Campaign Finance Program, it may

         10  decide it is no longer needed.

         11                 That is why we ask campaigns to show

         12  that every taxpayer dollar they receive through the

         13  Program is spent for qualified purposes.  New York

         14  City taxpayers deserve, and receive, rigorous and

         15  vigilant oversight of their investment in the

         16  political process.

         17                 We will continue working to provide

         18  that oversight, and we look forward to answering you

         19  questions, and having a dialog.

         20                 As I said at the beginning, I very

         21  seldom, if ever, have read all my testimony, but

         22  there I thought it was relatively concise, and all

         23  the things said in it were important, provided to

         24  me, and therefore, provided to you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Okay, I asked my
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          2  colleagues if they had any questions, and they want

          3  to think it over.

          4                 So, I'll start with the focus on the

          5  audits.

          6                 Can you tell me how many Final Audits

          7    --  you may have included that, but I don't think

          8  so  --  the Board issued thus far, from the 2005

          9  election?

         10                 MR. SCHWARZ:  Yes, it that the 105

         11  out of 200?

         12                 MS. LOPREST:  Yes, yes.

         13                 MR. SCHWARZ:  That's 105 out of 200.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  So about 50

         15  percent, right?

         16                 MR. SCHWARZ:  Yes.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  How many

         18  candidates have at least received a Draft Audit?

         19                 MR. SCHWARZ:  That's the much higher

         20  number.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Yes, that you

         22  put in--

         23                 MS. LOPREST:  There's unfortunately a

         24  typo in the testimony, I'm sorry.  It's 190 out of

         25  about 200.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  So that's very

          3  good.

          4                 MR. SCHWARZ:  So when it said 196,

          5  that was a typo.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Right, I knew

          7  you were trying to hide the six, sort of.

          8                 So, one the first question, we could

          9  do better. We'll get back to that.

         10                 Based on your knowledge of the Draft

         11  Audits that have been issues, how many campaigns

         12  were found to be in violation of, at least, one

         13  requirement?  And of those, how many still are found

         14  to be in violation when the Final Audit is

         15  completed?

         16                 MR. SCHWARZ:  Are you, Amy, able to

         17  answer or Julius, answer that precisely or with at

         18  least enough generality to help them?

         19                 MS. LOPREST:  I think  --  I mean, I

         20  don't have a precise answer, but the people who got

         21  the Draft Audits, I would say pretty much everyone

         22  of them had some big or small funding in that audit,

         23  otherwise they would have just been issued a Final

         24  Audit.  Of the Final Audits that have been issues,

         25  about 105, I would think about half of them have had
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          2  some penalty assessed.

          3                 We would be happy to get you the

          4  precise numbers, but I think it's about half.

          5                 MR. SCHWARZ:  I could give a

          6  perspective from the point of view of a board

          7  member.

          8                 When the matter comes to us, a

          9  candidate will have gotten a draft order, and then

         10  after discussion, will have gotten a notice of

         11  recommended penalties, and a reasonably high

         12  percentage of the recommended penalties are

         13  different than the number that was in the Draft

         14  Audit, because the Draft Audit goes out, and then

         15  there is a further dialog which results, often, in

         16  certain arguments being accepted and other arguments

         17  being rejected.

         18                 MS. LOPREST:  Yes, to add to that, I

         19  mean, you have seen in the Draft Audits, candidates

         20  having eight, nine findings in the Draft Audit, and

         21  then when it comes to the penalty phase having maybe

         22  one or two things, or having nothing at all

         23  remaining be the time they come before the Board and

         24  the Final Audit is issued.

         25                 So the Draft Audit does clear up a
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          2  substantial number of the problems.

          3                 MR. SCHWARZ:  The Board serves in the

          4  final hearings  --  serves two, in the broader

          5  sense, two functions.              One is to agree

          6  or disagree on the merits of a claim of violation,

          7  and sometimes we agree, sometimes we disagree, and I

          8  would say in most instances, they're relatively cut

          9  and dry, and one agrees.  But, sometimes we

         10  disagree.

         11                 The other function the Board plays is

         12  to consider whether as a matter of fairness,

         13  justice, equity, mercy, the penalty should be on the

         14  high end or on the low end, a good deal of our work

         15  as a Board is having concluded that there's a merits

         16  problem, is to make a judgement on whether the

         17  candidate's campaign has behaved in a sufficiently

         18  inappropriate way that you should have a penalty on

         19  the high side, or whether it's more of technical

         20  violation and there should be a penalty that would

         21  be distinctly on the low side.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Let me ask you a

         23  little bit about that.

         24                 The purpose of the penalty, let me

         25  make a little more trouble.
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          2                 What is the purpose of the penalty?

          3                 MR. SCHWARZ:  I think it's to bring

          4  home  --  the principle purpose of the penalty is

          5  bring home to the candidates and ultimately, to the

          6  public, that public funds are being protected.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  So, let my use

          8  the analogy with tickets because it's a favorite

          9  topic of my constituents, and I think many people in

         10  the City.

         11                 One would argue that really the

         12  purpose of tickets, whatever they may be, is to

         13  encourage compliance, whether that's sanitation

         14  tickets, or speeding tickets, or anything like that,

         15  and that they only reason that the price went up is

         16  that it was so cheap it didn't even pay for some of

         17  the tickets.  That's what some would say, that the

         18  price was raised for the tickets because the

         19  encouragement of compliance didn't exist.  If you

         20  can pay $20.00, $25.00 at some point for some of the

         21  tickets, it didn't matter.

         22                 So if we say that that's the case

         23  here, I would say or again, would you say that a

         24  candidate by receiving any penalty whatsoever, even

         25  if that penalty is a dollar, a token  -- there's the
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          2  issue of compliance because it really is a problem

          3  for candidates or elected officials to be issued any

          4  sort of penalty because of the public relations

          5  issue.

          6                 So, if let's say, somebody's driving

          7  and parks at a meter, and doesn't feed the meter,

          8  and gets a $50.00 ticket for that, $50.00 you know,

          9  he doesn't walk away from the spot and look around

         10  to see how many reporters are following him for not

         11  putting a quarter in the meter and getting a ticket,

         12  unless it's an elected official.

         13                 But when it comes to these types of

         14  fines that are public, whatever the amounts are

         15  sometimes you will find elected officials that are

         16  willing to pay ten times what you're penalizing

         17  them, if it could only not be pubic when that's not

         18  the case.

         19                 So, I'm just trying to point out that

         20  there's a balance here in that, maybe other times

         21  when an agency is issuing some sort of penalty or

         22  fine, that the amounts, whether they're significant

         23  or otherwise, make the point.  I don't know if

         24  that's necessarily so when it comes to your

         25  penalties, and that the amount I would argue, isn't
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          2  that relevant.

          3                 I'm not saying that there should be

          4  no amount, and I'm not telling you what amount I

          5  think is appropriate or not.  I would just say that

          6  they penalty itself is much, much, much, much, much

          7   --  I could say much another ten times  --  more

          8  important, or is really what encourages the

          9  compliance, rather than the amount of the penalty.

         10                 Do you have any--

         11                 MR. SCHWARZ:  Well I, a couple of

         12  thoughts occurred to me.

         13                 First, some degree of uniformities

         14  has some value.

         15                 Second thing is, I know when the

         16  Board is considering penalties, there are some

         17  additional factors that come into our mind.  For

         18  example, if you have identical conduct from, on the

         19  one hand, a new first- time candidate who got no

         20  public funds versus a veteran candidate who got the

         21  maximum in public funds, it might affect what we

         22  think the appropriate penalty is.

         23                 Now Amy, do you have some other

         24  thoughts in response to his question?

         25                 MS. LOPREST:  I mean, I have a couple
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          2  of thoughts.

          3                 One, the purpose of penalties  --

          4  the Board, obviously, oversees the campaigns of

          5  people who have been elected, but also there are

          6  other campaigns of the people who were not elected,

          7  and there's a uniformity and fairness issue to treat

          8  all the campaigns the same.

          9                 In addition, we do, after the 2001

         10  election, there was this issue raised, and the Board

         11  did slightly alter its penalty procedures and create

         12  a different level of infraction  -- different levels

         13  of violation, and called it infraction for certain

         14  minor violations of the Campaign Finance Act, and we

         15  posted the policies, if you have one or two minor

         16  corrected violations, the Board referred to them as

         17  infractions in response to suggestions by the city

         18  council members that that would be a better term to

         19  use, so that we already have some different

         20  leveling.

         21                 Also as far as the compliance and the

         22  purposes of the penalty, we did  --  maybe not a

         23  completely scientific study, but I mean we did a

         24  review of our penalty practices, and we did find

         25  that there is a fair correlation between candidates
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          2  that have been penalized and their better compliance

          3  in subsequent election cycles.

          4                 Now, it could be just experience or

          5  it could be the penalty, I mean, it's hard to tell,

          6  but there is a correlation.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  I would just

          8  say, and I don't want to stretch this out because

          9  there's a lot more  --  there are other questions,

         10  but I would just say that I would like to further

         11  discuss the possibilities, and again, the analogy of

         12  let's say a moving violation where there are points,

         13  you know maybe I'm making it a little simplistic,

         14  but that's what I would say, that there's a

         15  difference between moving violations and somebody

         16  not paying at a meter, and the penalty, the word

         17  penalty, is a very powerful word.  There's

         18  repayment, there are other things and sometimes I

         19  think that the Board itself has to be consistent as

         20  you said.  But if there was a variety of ways to

         21  term, words are very powerful, to term things, and

         22  sometimes where the violation is the equivalent of a

         23  parking meter thing or of a moving violation, and

         24  the penalties or repayments or whatever else, I

         25  think that it pays to look at that.
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          2                 I'd like to work on that to see what

          3  things really are, what you say necessitate a

          4  penalty when the average person looks at something

          5  like that, and it makes no difference to them when

          6  they see 50 people elected or otherwise.  And by

          7  they way, I had no intention of elected officials,

          8  or other officials being treated any differently.

          9                 So, I just think that's something,

         10  but let's go back to the audit procedures for a

         11  minute.

         12                 What methodology does the Board use

         13  to conduct audits?  Who decided how the Board does

         14  audits?

         15                 MS. LOPREST:  I think that Fritz

         16  explained our methodology but our Deputy Executive

         17  Director who was here in 1989 has always had

         18  oversight of that process  --  can explain the

         19  development of that procedure.

         20                 MS. CAMPOLO:  Yes in 1988, just when

         21  the--

         22                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Please state

         23  your name for the record.

         24                 MS. CAMPOLO:  I'm sorry.  I'm Carole

         25  Campolo, Deputy Executive Director.
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          2                 So in 1988, even way before the

          3  election of`89, we met with representatives from

          4  the`Big Eight' firms in those days, there were eight

          5  of them.  We met with the Comptroller's office, we

          6  met with all sorts of auditing and accounting

          7  professionals.  Our original director of audit and

          8  accounting was a retired auditor, director of

          9  auditing from the TA.  His deputy was also a audit

         10  and accountant from the Board of Education,

         11  and we made the decision in those days, with

         12  consultation with our  --  we had two accounting

         13  firms, Mitchell Titus was one, and the other one

         14  escapes me at the moment  --  how to conduct the

         15  audits, and in those days what we did was we

         16  conducted according to GAP, we had all of the

         17  campaigns have your usual business- type function,

         18  chart of accounts, all of those rigorous accounting

         19  books to do their election finances.

         20                 After the`89 election, as you can

         21  imagine, we got a lot of feedback from campaigns

         22  that that was just way too much for them to do in a

         23  short time, they were not professionals, this was

         24  not a business that they were running, this was an

         25  election.

                                                            30

          1  COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS

          2                 So the Board in consultation with our

          3  executive director at that time and our counsel at

          4  that time, and our director of audit and accounting

          5  reduced the requirements, did away with the chart of

          6  account- type books, all of those kind of accounting

          7  books, and instead went to the process that you see

          8  now, which is  --  we have a`pre' before the

          9  election, we go and we look at campaigns, books and

         10  records often, through compliance visits.  We have

         11  an extensive, extensive training  --  when you said

         12  before about`Do penalties encourage compliance,' it

         13  has been our hope that, for the last 19 years, what

         14  will encourage compliance is the extraordinary

         15  training that we try to provide to every campaign

         16  during the election, and post- election as well.

         17                 So we do a before, a during the

         18  election campaign, as you all know, we come out and

         19  look at the books and records of the campaign.  We

         20  review the financial disclosure statements that you

         21  all send periodically, and we review those

         22  statements for contributions, expenditures, and we

         23  make payment on the basis of those financial

         24  disclosures.  We make the payment within four days,

         25  four working days.   And that is the process during
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          2  the election, and post- election as you know, we

          3  require all documents and books and records that you

          4  have been keeping through the election, we then come

          5  and we perform our Final Audit or a Draft Audit that

          6  then goes to a Final Audit.

          7                 I hope that answers your question on

          8  methodology.

          9                 MS. LOPREST:  One additional thing, I

         10  mean if

         11  you  --  before the 2001 election, because it was

         12  going to be, anticipated that it would be the

         13  largest amount of public funds paid out in a single

         14  election, the Board engaged an outside auditing firm

         15  to audit the public fund, from 1988 to the time they

         16  conducted that audit in 2000, and during the course

         17  of that audit part of that auditing procedure was to

         18  audit the procedures that the Board used to review

         19  both the receipt and the distribution of public

         20  funds, and to make sure that public funds were used

         21  appropriately.

         22                 So that we did do a comprehensive

         23  audit of the agencies public funds during 2000, and

         24  the auditing firm that we did was from Golmark,

         25  Golan, Weiner and Evans (phonetic).
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          2                 MR. SCHWARZ:  And Julius, how many

          3  people work for you in the audit section of the CFB?

          4                 MR. PEELE:  Including myself, we have

          5  a staff of ten.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Who hired this

          7  auditing firm?

          8                 MS. LOPREST:  The Board did.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Right, so we'll

         10  get to that later.

         11                 MR. LOPREST:  I mean, obviously it

         12  was a competitive public bidding of the contract.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Understood, but

         14  you hired them.

         15                 MR. SCHWARZ:   Amy, is there a

         16  document  --  one that is available that you could

         17  give to them?

         18                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  What kind of

         19  document do you want to give us?

         20                 MS. LOPREST:  The Final Audit that

         21  they prepared.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Oh, I'd love to

         23  see that, I'd love to see that.

         24                 Some of my colleagues have questions,

         25  but I'll follow up.
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          2                 I just do want to mention that I, in

          3  the research that we've done, most of the people

          4  that have spoken to us have complimented the Board's

          5  training at being very, very helpful and very

          6  educational, but we're not here to necessarily spend

          7  time complimenting you.  We don't mind, we don't

          8  mind at all, but we have  --  everybody really had

          9  good things to say about that.

         10                 Council Member Dickens.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS:  Thank you,

         12  Mr. Chair, and good morning.

         13                 I have a question about enforcement.

         14                 In major election years, oftentimes

         15  you advertise and put in the names of the candidates

         16  who owe money back.

         17                 What enforcement is done to actually

         18  receive this money back, and where does that money

         19  go back?  Does it go back into CFB's money, or into

         20  the general fund?

         21                 Where does that money go back into?

         22                 MS. LOPREST:  The Board has a

         23  rigorous collection, if I understand you question,

         24  it's when people owe money, we do publicize on our

         25  website --
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS:  In the

          3  newspaper also?

          4                 MS. LOPREST:  Well, our legal staff

          5  has  -- engages in collection actions once the final

          6  audit is issued, before your name is posted on the

          7  website, a letter goes to the campaigns reminding

          8  them that they have this obligation.  I think

          9  actually two letters go before your name is actually

         10  posted, and then we engage in the normal collection

         11  process that any city agency would use.

         12                 We bring lawsuits to collect the

         13  penalties and public funds, and before obviously we

         14  bring a lawsuit, we issue a demand letter informing

         15  the candidate that we're going to bring a lawsuit

         16  giving them yet another opportunity to work with us

         17  to engage in some kind of settlement process or

         18  repayment plan, and for campaigns that owe smaller

         19  amounts of money, we do bring actions in small

         20  claims court to recover the money.

         21                 As was in the testimony, we've

         22  recovered quite a bit of money for the taxpayers

         23  through that process.

         24                 The amount that is recovered, it's

         25  penalties, it's returned to the City as required
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          2  under the law, and the public funds are also

          3  returned to the City.  The public funds come from

          4  the general revenue funds of the City and when we

          5  return public funds, that's where they go back to.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS:  How many

          7  lawsuits have you actually done that are outside of

          8  the realm of small claims?

          9                 MS. LOPREST:  That actual number

         10  over--

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS:

         12  Approximately, percentage- wise is fine.

         13                 MS. LOPREST:  I mean, there are a

         14  very small percentage of people require collection

         15  action because most people work with the staff to

         16  either enter into a payment plan.            I don't

         17  know, I would say maybe over the course of the 20

         18  years under 50.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS:  Let's say

         20  from the 2001 election.

         21                 MS. LOPREST:  From 2001, I'd have to

         22  look.  But I mean, I think it's not, it's not really

         23  many people.

         24                 MR. SCHWARZ:  We have our general

         25  counsel here, and if you don't know it off- hand, we
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          2  could send a letter in with that number.

          3                 MS. LOPREST:  Yes, we'll definitely

          4  get that number to you.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS:  All right,

          6  and then I have a question about audit procedures.

          7                 Does the Board's audit procedures

          8  follow closely, Generally Accepted Audit Procedures

          9  Standards?

         10                 MS. LOPREST:  Well as Deputy

         11  Executive Director Campolo explained, Generally

         12  Accepted Accounting Principles  -- the short answer

         13  to that question is yes, but Generally Accepted

         14  Accounting Principles are developed to assess the

         15  financial condition of a company or a government

         16  agency, and what we're doing in our audits is not

         17  assessing the financial condition of campaigns.

         18                 We have very specific purposes, the

         19  ones outlined in the testimony, and we don't expect

         20  the campaigns, I mean, we try to require the

         21  campaigns to maintain the books and records that a

         22  normal  --  a regular business would maintain, and

         23  that's just not feasible because campaigns are not a

         24  business, they don't keep their records in the same

         25  way, they're not in business for that.  They're in
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          2  business to run an election.  That's why we

          3  recognize that, and our audits do follow accounting

          4  procedures but because most accounting procedures

          5  are to assess the financial condition, the unit that

          6  they're assessing, we do different procedures.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS:  So based

          8  upon that, then you make up your standards and

          9  procedures, since you do have to deviate from the

         10  Generally Accepted Audit Standards?

         11                 MS. LOPREST:  I mean, I can let our

         12  Director of Auditing talk to that, but we don't  --

         13  I mean, I wouldn't say that we deviate from the

         14  procedures, we have a different purpose for the

         15  audit.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS:  When I say

         17  deviate, I'm sorry, I said deviate from it because

         18  since it is not a business, then it would be a

         19  deviation from it.

         20                 MS. LOPREST:  Yes, we have a

         21  professional audit staff and they have, after every

         22  election, review the audit procedures that we used

         23  for the previous election, and developed new

         24  standards and make modifications as necessary.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS:  So then you
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          2  do make your own modifications?

          3                 MS. LOPREST:  Yes, we do review, and

          4  as I said, we did have an outside audit for which

          5   --  that reviewed those procedures also.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS:  All right,

          7  also, timeframe.

          8                 What does the Board's rule say  --  I

          9  see and congratulate you about the 2005 you're at 50

         10  percent of returning the Draft Audit, is that

         11  correct?

         12                 Is it the Draft Audit or the Final

         13  Audit?

         14                 MS. LOPREST:  Final Audit.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS:  Final Audit,

         16  all right.

         17                 Well, when can the ballots of the

         18  2005 campaigns expect to receive their Final Audit?

         19                 MS. LOPREST:  I mean, if we were

         20  questioned about what's in our rules  --  in our

         21  rules, we have a commitment that the Draft Audits

         22  will be completed by the year after the year of the

         23  election.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS:  The end of

         25  the calendar year?
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          2                 MS. LOPREST:  At the end of the

          3  calendar year, yes.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS:  Should be or

          5  must be, which is it?

          6                 MS. LOPREST:  It's to the extent

          7  practicable, there's always some candidates that

          8  have either a request for time, or have more

          9  difficult issues.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS:  So you said

         11  should be then?

         12                 MS. LOPREST:  Yes, and for the Final

         13  Audits, there is no specific timeline in the rules

         14  because as Chairman Schwarz pointed out, between the

         15  Draft and the Final Audit is actually the most

         16  intense in working with the campaigns to resolve

         17  their problems.  It does require, if there are going

         18  to be penalties assessed, careful review of the

         19  responses of the campaigns, and also a full

         20  procedure to notify the campaigns of the potential

         21  violations, giving them an opportunity to respond to

         22  those notices, and also allowing them an opportunity

         23  to appear before the Board if they so choose.

         24                 Because each campaign is different,

         25  and run differently, I mean, we acknowledge that
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          2  every campaign is run in a slightly different way,

          3  that it is impossible to really set a firm timeline

          4  to end the audits because you don't know if there

          5  are going to be issues that require additional

          6  investigation that arise.  But we do always strive

          7  to finish the audits in the most timely methods that

          8  we possibly can.

          9                 MR. SCHWARZ:  There are times,

         10  relatively few, but important ones where a district

         11  attorney may ask us to go slowly because they're

         12  looking at something, and they don't want us to get

         13  in the way of what they're doing.  That happens

         14  seldom, but it does happen sometimes.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS:  One last

         16  question.

         17                 Oftentimes, candidates feel that the

         18  Board approaches audits, whether this is an unfair

         19  assessment or not, oftentimes feels that the Board

         20  approaches audits with a bias towards the campaigns,

         21  that they're the bad guys always looking to cheat

         22  the system.

         23                 What are the Board's objectives in

         24  conducting audits?

         25                 MR. SCHWARZ:  We start from the staff
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          2  perspective, and then from the Board perspective.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS:  Well, is

          4  there a difference between the--

          5                 MR. SCHWARZ:  They have a different

          6  role.

          7                 MS. LOPREST:  I mean, the Board has a

          8  slightly different role.  I don't think we have a

          9  different perspective of what the candidates  --

         10  the purpose of the audits, as outlined in the

         11  testimony, is really to safeguard the public funds,

         12  to ensure that the public disclosure that's given by

         13  the candidates is accurate, and to make sure that

         14  there's fairness among all candidates in that

         15  everyone is complying with the laws.

         16                 I know  --  I've obviously heard this

         17  criticism that the Board approaches it as everyone

         18  is guilty until proven innocent, and that's really

         19  not the case.  Really it's a review of the books and

         20  records of the campaign.  Obviously, sometimes in

         21  that review, we uncover instances that are

         22  significant violations, but in the most instances,

         23  most of the things that are in your Draft Audit are

         24  relatively simple reporting errors, you know, you

         25  forgot to report this or that, that you filed the
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          2  disclosure statement not in a timely fashion.

          3                 I don't think that most of the

          4  findings that are in the Draft Audits are actually

          5  that serious, although at times, campaigns do have

          6  serious violations, and the main purpose, the main

          7  way we approach them is to make sure that the law is

          8  being followed, and that is to guarantee that

          9  there's a fairness to the process for all the

         10  candidates, both you and your opponent.

         11                 You wouldn't want us to give a less

         12  rigorous audits to your opponent, and obviously, we

         13  do conduct them in all the same way, and approach

         14  them to make sure that the process is being fair.

         15                 I've heard this also, you don't want

         16  to be the one person who is rigorously following the

         17  laws with the idea that people are getting  --

         18  trying to get away with something, not that I think

         19  that is the approach that anyone is doing, but the

         20  approach of auditing every candidate thoroughly is

         21  to make sure that there is a fairness to the whole

         22  process.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS:  Does the

         24  staff focus more on the form of the, say, receipt of

         25  record than on the information?
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          2                 MS. LOPREST:  No, I think we focus on

          3  the information that's in the records.  I mean, that

          4  is the most important information that's contained.

          5                 MS. CAMPOLO:  Let me also comment

          6  about how some of the candidates believe the staff

          7  feels.

          8                 I think that you will all agree that

          9  there is extensive back and forth between our staff

         10  and your campaigns, and again, our staff tries to be

         11  as helpful as possible, given the process, and given

         12  the whole process of an audit, but I really believe

         13  that, and I know when you're getting an audit done,

         14  we all get audits done as city agencies, that

         15  there's that kind of tension that is built up, but I

         16  do know that the staff goes out of their way to

         17  spend long amounts of time on the phone trying to

         18  walk the campaigns through whatever issues there

         19  are, and if that's not the case, we'd like to know

         20  that.  But the feedback that we have gotten is that,

         21  and we hope to continue that with the campaigns.

         22                 MS. LOPREST:  I'm sorry, can I just

         23  amend your question about the form versus content?

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS:  Yes.

         25                 MS. LOPREST:  Often, what the Board
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          2  is requesting is documents, and so, in that sense it

          3  is a form.

          4                 I mean, we are looking that you are

          5  able to document that you have complied with the

          6  law.  So, to the extent that feels more like form

          7  over content, that may be where that impression

          8  comes, but it is that you need to be able to

          9  document your compliance with the law, and I think

         10  most people are able to do that.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS:  All right,

         12  thank you very much.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Council Member

         14  Koppell, and others that have joined us, Council

         15  Member Diana Reyna, who has to  leave.  Council

         16  Member Rosie Mendez, who was here before, and

         17  Council Member Domenic Recchia.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA:  She has to

         19  go.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  You have to ask

         21  Oliver.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  I have to go

         23  too.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  So then, that's

         25  it.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  One quick

          3  question?

          4                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Go ahead, go

          5  ahead.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ:  Thank you,

          7  Mr. Chair.

          8                 I'm sorry for the interruption.

          9                 Thank you Council Member Koppell.

         10                 I just wanted to ask the CFB, as far

         11  as unspent funds, paying back the CFB, before the

         12  audit is finalized, because the candidate has to

         13  remain very indirectly associated

         14  to everything that goes on as far as the treasury of

         15  the

         16  campaign  --  it's hard for me to articulate exactly

         17  what I'm talking about, but I know enough that right

         18  now there's an amount that was paid back to the CFB,

         19  but we still have bills to pay, and there was an

         20  audit.

         21                 After the audit, you have  --

         22  everything is closed, everything was done, checked

         23  off, checks and balances, but now I have this

         24  remaining balance because we had to do the audit

         25  before we paid all of these bills.
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          2                 MR. SCHWARZ:  So, you're view is the

          3  audit should be slowed down?

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ:  No, not

          5  slowed down, but to include, before any unspent

          6  funds go into effect for the stamp of approval to

          7  begin the process of the audit, the audit should

          8  take place in my eyes, and then a final bill from

          9  the CFB as to what we owe.

         10                 MS. LOPREST:  Maybe I can answer

         11  this.

         12                 What is done is actually the amount

         13  that is unspent that you're talking about is due

         14  only after the election is over  --  I mean, after

         15  the audit is over.

         16                 When we calculate what you call

         17  "unspent," we do consider in that calculation all

         18  liabilities that you have reported as outstanding,

         19  it's not just the cash, so, I mean, I don't know

         20  exactly what you're talking about, but we do include

         21  that.

         22                 In addition, when you get the Draft

         23  Audit, and there is a finding that you have unspent

         24  campaign funds, campaigns are invited to explain and

         25  present bills that were presented to the campaign
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          2  after the last disclosure statement.

          3                 The last disclosure statement a

          4  campaign files with the Board is on January 15th of

          5  the year after the election. We understand that some

          6  vendors bill late, so we often invite campaigns to

          7  provide us with any bills that they received after

          8  that January 15th disclosure statement to be

          9  adjusted from their unspent campaign funds.

         10                 So I mean, it should take care of

         11  that problem. In addition, one additional step that

         12  we have added for the 2005 election is that the same

         13  way that there's a notice of recommended penalties

         14  sent to campaigns who may be facing a penalty,

         15  campaigns who have responded to the draft audit, and

         16  still have any kind of public funds repayment

         17  obligation, we send another notice to the campaign

         18  saying, "You've responded to the draft audit, and

         19  this is what we've looked at, and what we've

         20  accepted, and this is the amount that the continuing

         21  repayment obligation we have before we issue the

         22  Final Audit."

         23                 So there's yet another opportunity to

         24  discuss if there's differences of what is understood

         25  by the campaign, if they got additional bills or
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          2  somehow mistakenly didn't send the bills when we

          3  sent the Draft Audit, they have another opportunity

          4  to say, "Oh no, I have these outstanding bills."

          5                 The amount, really the unspent

          6  calculation is intended to repay to the taxpayers

          7  money that the campaign didn't need for their

          8  campaign, and if they had bills, they should  -- we

          9  should have been able to accommodate that in the

         10  audit process.

         11                 So, I don't know how that happens,

         12  but I mean, maybe even if you got your bills very,

         13  very, very late, but now we have this second step

         14  and additional opportunity to respond after the

         15  draft audit about your payment for public funds

         16  payment obligation.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ:  But I don't

         18  think we're talking about Draft Audit, I believe

         19  this is about the Final Audit.

         20                 MS. LOPREST:  No, and that's what I'm

         21  saying, it's that before we issue the Draft Audit,

         22  you responded and we issue the Final Audit, and that

         23  your repayment.

         24                 Now, there's another step between the

         25  Draft Audit and the Final Audit giving another

                                                            49

          1  COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS

          2  opportunity.  Say in the Draft it says, "We

          3  calculate you need to pay back $1,000," you would

          4  give some information, then before we would send a

          5  final audit saying, "You need to repay $500.00"

          6                 Now what we would do is send another

          7  letter saying, "You have to repay $500.00," and you

          8  could respond to that letter saying, "Oh no, no, no,

          9  here are these other bills," and then the Final

         10  Audit would take into account that additional

         11  response.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ:  Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Good thing you

         14  didn't have a longer question.

         15                 Maybe, do you want to set up some

         16  time with them?

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ:  I certainly

         18  will.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Yes.

         20                 MR. LOPREST:  Yes, if you have a

         21  question--

         22                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Yes, I would

         23  like Council Member Mendez, if you can let me know

         24  what the result of that conversation is, I would

         25  appreciate it.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ:  I can do

          3  that.  Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  For the next

          5  short question, Council Member Koppell.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  I'll try and

          7  be short.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  No, you can do

          9  whatever you want.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  First of

         11  all, there is

         12  no  --  this is difficult because, of course, we are

         13  all subject to your audits, but some issues come up

         14  that are of general nature, and I'm going to try to

         15  explore those.  Not specifically, with respect with

         16  any audit that I'm involved in.

         17                 One is, you don't have a specific

         18  time between your Draft Audit and your next

         19  response.  You can take as much time as you want?

         20                 MR. SCHWARZ:  Well, I mean Oliver, I

         21  mean, Councilman Koppell.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  We know each

         23  other for only 40 years, so.

         24                 MR. SCHWARZ:  Right, in my experience

         25  most of the time that's taken between the Draft
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          2  Audit, and the matter being right for final

          3  decision, is where the candidate or the candidates

          4  counsel is asking for more time to either think or

          5  to work something out or so forth.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  I don't

          7  know, I'm not sure Draft Audit, there's an initial

          8  audit and then there's another audit, maybe that's

          9  the Draft Final Audit that you get.               The

         10  point is that a lot time goes by after you get the

         11  initial audit before you get another response, I

         12  don't know what you call that.

         13                 MS. LOPREST:  I think I can clarify

         14  maybe.

         15                 What we do is, I think what you're

         16  referring to is when we start the audit process, the

         17  post- election audit process, we sent what we call a

         18  Request for Audit Documentation, and those requests

         19  because we understand campaigns dissipate, are

         20  usually quite shortly after the election, usually

         21  for people who are not going to proceed to the

         22  general election, those requests for documents are

         23  sent the end of September, the beginning of October,

         24  and then for candidates who are in the general

         25  election, those requests go out in November or
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          2  December.  The audits, if that's the first request--

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  Well, let me

          4  not--

          5                 MS. LOPREST:-- then there can be a

          6  time

          7  because--

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  It was

          9  really a predicate  question.

         10                 The point is, that in between a

         11  report that was given, and a response received from

         12  the Board, a lot of time goes by, months and months

         13  go by, at least they do in connection with campaigns

         14  that I'm familiar with, and then when the response

         15  comes, a very short time is given to the campaign to

         16  respond with very strong language saying, "You must

         17  respond by this date, or penalties will go into

         18  effect."

         19                 Is there a Board rule or a staff rule

         20  as to how much time that campaign has to respond to

         21  that post- Draft Audit report?

         22                 MS. LOPREST:  Well I mean, every

         23  letter that we send out has a deadline in it.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  How long are

         25  those deadlines supposed to be?
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          2                 MS. LOPREST:  I mean, I think there's

          3  about 30 days for each  --  in each case.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  Okay.

          5                 MS. LOPREST:  Of course, campaigns

          6  are routinely given extensions, if they request

          7  them.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  Well, two

          9  things if I could recommend.

         10                 Number one, there must be at least 30

         11  days.  I know of an instance where it wasn't 30

         12  days.

         13                 Second of all, if it is intended that

         14  a campaign can ask for an extension, it should say

         15  that.  If you require more time, you should need it.

         16    Because a campaign that I'm very familiar with got

         17  a letter, "You must respond by February so- and so,

         18  or the penalties will take effect, or you will then

         19  have to come before the Board and ask for whatever

         20  remedy you ask for."               So, it looked

         21  like if you didn't get back by this particular date,

         22  the only remedy you had was to go before the Board,

         23  and I think that's  --  first of all, there should

         24  be at least 30 days, and second of all, there should

         25  be an explanation that if you need additional time,
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          2  that that will be provided.

          3                 Let me proceed.

          4                 MR. PEELE:  Let me just jump in on

          5  the point the councilman's made.

          6                 If in fact the Board has taken a very

          7  long time to develop a point of view, it makes his

          8  point particularly powerful, I think.

          9                 MS. LOPREST:  Well, I think also

         10  sometimes those dates are driven by the date of the

         11  Board meetings, so that you can respond before the

         12  Board meeting.

         13                 So, it may be that in those cases

         14  it's less than 30 days  --  so that you can--

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  But that

         16  should not

         17  be  --  you just have given an explanation which

         18  should not

         19  be the case.  Then put it over to the next Board

         20  meeting because--

         21                 MR. SCHWARZ:  I think we ought to

         22  look at the question, and just think about it, and

         23  look at our regular documentation.

         24            COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  Fine, the second

         25  think is that you have a tendency in your
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          2  correspondence to put down the maximum penalties.

          3                 Now, I appreciate that that is a

          4  warning to everybody, but if you can imagine a

          5  campaigner gets a notice that you may be subject to

          6  paying back $90,000 to the City, that's a very

          7  nerve- wracking type of thing.

          8                 In most cases, I don't think that's

          9  ultimately what happens, but I do think that you

         10  should think about how you phrase the possible

         11  penalties, and perhaps, the better thing would be to

         12  even send a list of penalties, all the penalties

         13  that you have, along with the letter, rather than a

         14  specific penalty with respect to something that can

         15  be cured, because I don't think your intention is to

         16  make people frightened, and that brings me to the

         17  next point.  It's really not a question, it's a

         18  comment.

         19                 The next point is that I think you

         20  have to re think, and we have to re- think because

         21  it may require legislation, the liability of

         22  treasurers.  I can tell you that it is extremely

         23  difficult to get a treasurer, when you tell the

         24  treasurer that you may be personally liable for

         25  these enormous penalties, and for repayment of
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          2  $90,000.

          3                 I mean, I had to beg to get a

          4  treasurer, beg, literally beg to get a treasurer,

          5  and I have heard from my colleagues that it's a

          6  similar issue, and I think the treasurer, perhaps,

          7  should only be subject if they show some kind of

          8  willful misconduct resulting in personal gain or

          9  something.  Otherwise  maybe there should be some

         10  penalty but not  --  I'm telling you, people will

         11  not be treasurers if they are subject to paying

         12  $100,000 back, or penalties of that nature.

         13                 The last thing I might say is, and I

         14  do have to go to another committee hearing, I'm

         15  sorry, I apologize, but is that, do you do  --  the

         16  IRS, and I have been subject over many years,

         17  occasionally to an IRS audit, and I found them to

         18   -- contrary to what maybe other people feel, I

         19  found them to be fair.  Where the IRS agent sits

         20  with you and goes through your papers with you, and

         21  then sometimes at the end comes up and says, "well,

         22  we'll adjust it, we'll adjust it if you pay an extra

         23  $5,000 in taxes."

         24                 Do you have any procedure of that

         25  sort?  I mean, you don't have to accept what the IRS
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          2  agent does.  You can appeal and so on, but do you

          3  have any procedure like that where your person would

          4  sit down with a campaign and discuss these issues

          5  and say, "Well, there may be a little money to be

          6  paid back, or there's going to be some minor

          7  penalties because you didn't have the back of the

          8  check?"  Because that's one of the things you're

          9  very good at finding out that you didn't give them

         10  the back of the check, a copy of the back of the

         11  check.

         12                 I mean, do you have anything like

         13  that in your procedures?

         14                 MS. LOPREST:  I mean, we do training.

         15    We have people call all the time to talk to the

         16  auditors on the phone.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  Right.

         18                 MS. LOPREST:  And I mean, we have on

         19  occasion sat with campaigns and discussed their

         20  issues.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  But you

         22  don't have a procedure where you could say, "We'll

         23  come in with all of our papers, we'll sit down with

         24  your fellow and we'll try and work these out."

         25                 MS. LOPREST:  No we don't.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  And if we

          3  don't agree, then there can be an appeal.

          4                 I would suggest you consider that.  I

          5  really think that would be a good way.  The IRS does

          6  it that way, it seems to work, and as I said, it

          7  doesn't mean that the campaign has to necessarily

          8  accept that, but I think that would be a good way of

          9  proceeding.  Then if you're not happy with what

         10  comes out of that, you can go to the Board, as

         11  Chairman said, that would be my recommendation.

         12                 MS. CAMPOLO:  I mean councilman, over

         13  the last 19 years, we did not establish a procedure

         14  like that, and of course, you can understand one of

         15  the reasons is also the perception  -- part of the

         16  thing is the level of the playing field and being

         17  non- partisan, and not everybody you could argue,

         18  would be comfortable in coming into the Board as

         19  somebody as an elected official, or someone else.

         20                 So, everything we do is at a Draft

         21  Audit, it is public, it is in writing, and so that

         22  we don't sit down with campaigns and say, "Well,

         23  maybe we'll shave off a little here or a little

         24  there."

         25                 There are conversations, as I
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          2  mentioned before, that go on extensively as to the

          3  staff trying to help the campaign out, but it would

          4  be inappropriate, and we have felt over 19 years,

          5  all of our counsels, all of our past Board members,

          6  that that's sort of sitting in an office, behind

          7  closed doors, not in a public forum, such as an

          8  audit process, that the perception, I'm not saying

          9  the reality, I'm saying the perception

         10  might be to the outside world, the taxpayers that

         11  are paying for the program, that that may be not an

         12  appropriate way to go.

         13                 I think Chairman Schwarz is saying

         14  that we are probably going to take a look at that.

         15  But, I just want to let you know that from Day 1,

         16  that was one of our concerns, that the taxpayer and

         17  the public believe that the perception and reality,

         18  that there is never a hint that there might be a

         19  conversation of that sort going on.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  Well, it's

         21  somewhat contradictory what you say now, and what

         22  the Executive Director said because you said you'd

         23  take calls and you discuss things all the time with

         24  campaigns, and I know you do, and your people by the

         25  way, are helpful.  I'm not saying they're not.
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          2                 It's really an extension of that, and

          3  I'm not saying by the way it should be some secret

          4  process.  The inspector would put down, "Evidence

          5  was presented that these checks were in fact used

          6  for the purpose that they were supposed to be used

          7  for, or evidence was established explaining how

          8  these monies were in fact for compliance," if that's

          9  the issue.  "There was no evidence that this

         10  particular expenditure was in fact made, and

         11  therefore,"  --  I mean, you could have a written

         12  report, so that the problem you are addressing would

         13  be I would say responded to, let me put it that way.

         14

         15                 My own view is that that would not

         16  create either a public perception or a reality that

         17  would be inappropriate and as I say, the IRS does

         18  that way, and there's certainly possibilities with

         19  the IRS of all kinds of things happening, and yet,

         20  they still do it that way.

         21                 I'm sorry, I have to go to another

         22  hearing.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Councilman

         24  Recchia, and then we will do a vote on the other

         25  item, and then come back.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA:  Yes, good

          3  morning.

          4                 I just want to follow up on

          5  Councilman Koppell's issue.

          6                 Many of my colleagues and I feel that

          7  you request materials that we already submitted, and

          8  it goes back and forth, and we submitted it already.

          9    But yet, in the audit it comes up and says we

         10  didn't submit it, and then we submit it again.

         11  Sometimes you feel like just coming in and sitting

         12  down, and resolving the issue, instead of going back

         13  and forth with all this paperwork.  It's like, I

         14  just don't understand why we just can't sit down and

         15  resolve the issue, instead of going back and forth.

         16  We bring it up there, I mean, there are times when

         17  we file papers, and they say they never got the

         18  papers, and with the receipts.  I just think if you

         19  go in, you sit down, you could resolve the issue

         20  that way, and I don't think there's any problem with

         21  any perception because you're doing everything in

         22  the open, and you're resolving an issue.

         23                 Isn't the object here to resolve

         24  problems, not try to hurt someone, or hurt a

         25  campaign?
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          2                 You know, when you tell me there's a

          3  perception, there's this, there's rules and

          4  regulations here, we don't want perceptions, and

          5  this.  I mean, we're not doing anything bad. We're

          6  just trying to resolve issues.  We're supposed to

          7  sit down.

          8                 MR. SCHWARZ:  Well see, I'm a little

          9  confused by the recent dialog because I think the

         10   --  my impression is that is done in that someone

         11  says, "Well, I did pay such and such."            That

         12  kind of dialog happens between the candidate or the

         13  candidates staff and the CFB staff.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA:  No, what

         15  happens is that you bring the stuff there, and they

         16  still don't get it.  You say, "Listen, could I

         17  please come in, and sit down with you, and show you

         18  were you have it?"  It's happened to my colleagues,

         19  and I'm just bringing  --  this is an issue.

         20                 But, a bigger problem here going back

         21  and forth with the dialog is that you assign someone

         22  to a campaign, the campaign calls up the person at

         23  CFB, "Could I do X, Y, and Z?"                "Yes

         24  you could do X, Y, and Z."

         25                  "Could you put it in writing to the
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          2  campaign?"

          3                  "No, I can't."

          4                 Then the audit comes up, and it said

          5  you couldn't do X, Y, and Z.

          6                 MR. SCHWARZ:  The chairman has a

          7  particular thought on that, which he's voiced

          8  before, and which I think we are looking at  --  a

          9  way of addressing it.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA:  I mean,

         11  Campaign Finance hates to put anything in writing.

         12                 MR. SCHWARZ:  No, they get thousands

         13  of calls or lots and lots of call, but the idea

         14  would be  --  the Chairman's idea was that the

         15  candidate, after that punitive conversation, would

         16  send an email to the CFB, and if the CFB didn't

         17  disagree, then  --  the Chairman's idea on the very

         18  problem you put your finger on was that in that

         19  situation, the person from the campaign would send

         20  an email or some such thing to the liaison

         21  at the CFB, and if the CFB person didn't disagree,

         22  then that would be the understanding.

         23                 I think that probably is a useful

         24  suggestion, and this is a problem that I've heard

         25  about before, and I frankly think the Chairman's
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          2  suggestion was a good one.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA:  I just think

          4  that your office has to make candidates feel that

          5  you're there to help them, you're not there to hurt

          6  a campaign, or fine a campaign.              You

          7  see, and I just think that people are terrified,

          8  terrified, to call up or come  --  because they

          9  think they're going to get fined or something.  I

         10  just think that, you know the last, the end of the

         11  road if they don't comply, if they don't work with

         12  you to try to resolve the issues.  Yes, you're going

         13  to be fined, but not that along the way everything

         14  is going to be fined.

         15                 I just think it has to be more

         16  campaign friendly so we have this dialog, and that

         17  you want to resolve the problem to make sure that

         18  the money was spent properly.

         19                 MR. SCHWARZ:  You know, one thought

         20  that came into my mind when, actually Councilwoman

         21  Reyna and Oliver and you were talking, it is that

         22   --  I remember a situation where somebody did want

         23  to come down and resolve informally a matter which

         24  was not a technical kind of violation, it wasn't an

         25  issue of had they gotten them reports in on time or
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          2  something.  It was an issue of whether they'd

          3  improperly spent money, claiming it was for a

          4  campaign- related purpose, when it really wasn't.

          5  They asked for a special meeting, a behind the

          6  scenes meeting, and that one we said, "No,

          7  absolutely not,"  because that's a sort of issue

          8  which ought to be resolved one way or the other in

          9  public.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA:  I agree with

         11  that.  What I'm saying here is that if you keep on

         12  constantly asking for copies, or asking for

         13  documentation, that constantly we send in, you know

         14  what?  I want to go there myself and bring it

         15  myself, sit down with you, show it, or say that I

         16  sent it in, you have it in the packet.

         17                 MS. LOPREST:  These kind of concerns

         18  that people, we've done a number of different things

         19  to try and alleviate these  --  after the 2001

         20  elections, I think Council Member Weprin brought up

         21  that we ask about invalid matching claims over and

         22  over again, and we changed the format for which, how

         23  we respond when you reply to an invalid matching

         24  claims.

         25                 Now, we indicate that we have
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          2  received a response, that we've reviewed it, and if

          3  it's still there you can understand that we've not

          4  accepted your response.

          5                 Also, this kind of issue about giving

          6  documentation and responding is one of the issues

          7  that they audit training that was developed starting

          8  in 2006, was intended to help with.  That we would

          9  have a training to tell you, "Okay, you're going to

         10  get your Draft Audit, this is maybe not what exactly

         11  your Draft Audit is going to look like, but this is

         12  what a Draft Audit looks like, these are the most

         13  common findings in it, and these are the ways that

         14  you could respond to them."  And helping campaigns

         15  understand  --  you give us a whole bunch of

         16  documents, and here are ways that you should explain

         17  your documents, these are ways that you should put

         18  them in order, and just try and help.

         19                 But I understand that we should try

         20  and be more friendly, to try and help candidates

         21  understand the audit process, and to respond more

         22  fully, and also, so there's no confusion about what

         23  you've responded to.

         24                 Unfortunately, those audit training's

         25  were not as popular as one would have hoped, only 39
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          2  candidates went to them, but they are available.  We

          3  did put from that, I think it was also a suggestion

          4  from another council member, that we put

          5  the`Frequently Asked Questions' about the audit

          6  process on our website so that you can go and look

          7  at them and review them, even if you don't have the

          8  time to come to the training.

          9                 I think we are trying.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA:  As far as

         11  the extension are concerned, you know, I just have

         12  to say that when we call

         13  up  -- my campaign called up for extensions, we've

         14  always gotten an extension, and I think that's good.

         15

         16                 But again, a lot of people are not

         17  aware that they could call up.  I think you should

         18  make that more--

         19                 MR. SCHWARZ:  Councilman Koppell had

         20  an idea that was useful and sort of headed on, okay?

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA:  Yes, but I

         22  just wanted to tell you that you are very generous

         23  in giving extensions.  It's greatly appreciated.

         24                 No further questions.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  All right,
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          2  before we continue with the questions, we're going

          3  to take a break, and go to the vote on Intro. Number

          4  502- A.

          5                 So, don't go away, we don't want you

          6  to have to leave and come back because you may need

          7  an extension.

          8                 Good morning, and welcome to this

          9  hearing.  I am Simcha Felder, chair of the

         10  Committee.  I am joined by my colleagues, Council

         11  Member Inez Dickens, Domenic Recchia, Erik Dilan,

         12  Peter Vallone, Jr.

         13                 I'd like to introduce again to my

         14  left, the Counsel to the Committee, DeNora Johnson,

         15  and also to my right, my Legislative Aid, Michael

         16  Casatano.

         17                 During the first portion of today's

         18  hearing.

         19                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE:  It's not

         20  the first portion of the hearing.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Oh, right,

         22  forget it.

         23                 The Committee now will consider

         24  Proposed Intro. Number 502- A, which would improve

         25  upon the changes enacted by Local Law 15 and 17 of
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          2  2006, comprising parts of the Lobbying Reform law

          3  package as enacted by the Council last year.

          4                 Proposed Intro. Number 502- 1 would

          5  clarify what information lobbyists are required to

          6  include in their Statements of Registration, and

          7  would protect the personal privacy of lobbyists,

          8  their spouses or domestic partners, and their

          9  unemancipated children by clarifying which

         10  components of such information would be made

         11  publicly available.

         12                 It is important for the Council to

         13  continue to evaluate the law to improve upon its

         14  mandates and ensure that the laws' practical

         15  application conforms to the laws legislative intent.

         16

         17                 In this particular case, why it's

         18  important for us to ensure the government is

         19  transparent and accessible to all, it is also

         20  important for us to ensure that we protect

         21  individuals reasonable expectations of privacy.

         22                 Thus, Proposed Intro. Number 502- A

         23  would one; delete the unconditional requirement in

         24  the Administrative Code of the City of New York that

         25  lobbyists Statements of Registration contain the
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          2  names, addresses and telephone numbers of their

          3  unemancipated children, and instead require that

          4  such information be provided only if campaign

          5  contributions are made in the unemancipated

          6  children's names, two; clarify that lobbyists'

          7  Statements of Registration must contain their home

          8  and business addresses, and the same information for

          9  their spouses or domestic partners and the business

         10  telephone number of the lobbyists, and three;

         11  clarify that all home addresses, and also the

         12  business addresses of their spouses or domestic

         13  partners will be kept confidential and not made

         14  available for public inspection.

         15                 Is there anyone that wanted to

         16  testify regarding Proposed Intro. Number 502- A?

         17                 Seeing none, I just want to say for

         18  the record that Citizens Union submitted testimony

         19  supporting this bill which will be included in the

         20  record, and we always appreciate the good work that

         21  you do.

         22                 All of my colleagues should have

         23  received a copy of the Fiscal Impact Statement of

         24  this bill, which was diligently prepared by the

         25  Council's Finance Division.
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          2                 Before we open the vote, do any of

          3  colleagues have any comments or remarks they would

          4  like to make regarding this?

          5                 With that said, we'd like to open the

          6  vote.

          7                 Thank you.

          8                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Council Member

          9  Felder.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Aye.

         11                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Dilan.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN:  Aye.

         13                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Recchia.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA:  Aye.

         15                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Vallone.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  Aye.

         17                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Dickens.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS:  Aye.

         19                 COUNCIL CLERK:  By a vote of five in

         20  the affirmative, zero in the negative, and no

         21  abstentions, the item has been adopted.

         22                 Members, please sign the Committee

         23  Report, thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Now that we've

         25  finished with the station break on that item, we're
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          2  back to Campaign Finance Board.

          3                 Council Member Peter Vallone, Jr. Has

          4  a question.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  Thank you,

          6  Mr. Chair.

          7                 Again I want to apologize for my

          8  lateness.  As I mentioned, the whole FDR southbound

          9  is shut down.  I have spent most of my morning

         10  there.

         11                 Welcome to all of you.

         12                 I just want to follow up on something

         13  that Council Member Koppell said regarding treasurer

         14  liability.  I don't believe there was an answer.

         15                 Where are we now in the current law?

         16                 How does it stand taking into

         17  consideration recent court cases regarding the

         18  liability of treasurers and the candidate for

         19  penalties?

         20                 MR. SCHWARZ:  The case which was

         21  decided in the Appellate Division, the lower court

         22  split, the Appellate Division decided that on

         23  certain matters, the candidate and the treasurer

         24  could not be held liable, and on most matters they

         25  can be.
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          2                 We have proposed, focusing on

          3  candidates, we proposed that the old law be

          4  restored.  Treasurers, you know I don't know that

          5  we've given the same amount of thought to the

          6  subject of treasurers.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  Just to slow

          8  you down there.

          9                 MR. SCHWARZ:  Yes.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  I'd like to

         11  be considered an expert, but we have too many things

         12  else to work on.

         13                 When you talk about old law and

         14  certain things, maybe you should clue us in on what

         15  that means.

         16                 MS. LOPREST:  When you talk about

         17  penalties, the current law, the Campaign Finance

         18  Act, holds treasurers and candidates and committees

         19  liable for the penalties that are assessed by the

         20  Board.  The court case that Chairman Schwarz

         21  was referring to dealt with only the case where a

         22  candidate had to  --  was obligated to repay public

         23  funds because they had failed to demonstrate that

         24  they had spent the money appropriately.

         25                 There are other reasons campaigns are
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          2  required to pay back public funds, and the liability

          3  of candidates, treasurers, committees is handled

          4  differently in those cases, but penalties, if you're

          5  talking about the assessment of penalties for a

          6  violation of the Act, candidates, treasurers and

          7  committees are liable for those.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  So the

          9  treasurers and the candidates are personally liable

         10  for penalties?

         11                 MS. LOPREST:  Yes.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  Is there

         13  any--

         14                 MR. SCHWARZ:  The number of times a

         15  money has been collected from a treasurer would be

         16  very, very, very low.

         17                 MS. LOPREST:  I mean, it has happened

         18  but it's

         19  not  --  it's more voluntary.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  Is there any

         21  necessity for showing either negligence, gross

         22  negligence, or malfeasance to be held liable?

         23                 MS. LOPREST:  For penalties, no.  The

         24  law says that the candidates and treasurers are

         25  liable.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  Okay well,

          3  that as Oliver Koppell said, clearly has to be

          4  changed.

          5                 No treasurer who wasn't even

          6  negligent, or at least maybe even if he was

          7  negligent, but not gross negligent, should be

          8  personally liable.

          9                 If nothing else, if for no other

         10  reason, then the fact that we can't  --  it's

         11  impossible for us to find treasurers if they are

         12  going to be personally liable.  They don't make that

         13  money.  If they made the money they were worth, then

         14  we wouldn't be in campaign finance because we'd be

         15  paying all the money to the treasurers.

         16                 So, we can't pay the treasurers the

         17  money that they are worth, and there's no reason,

         18  other than if they are a family member I guess, for

         19  them to be your treasurer, and take that liability

         20  on.

         21                 So there's a practical basis for it,

         22  and it doesn't seem fair that someone should be

         23  liable for  --  if they weren't negligent or at

         24  least weren't gross negligent, whereas Oliver

         25  Koppell said they weren't willfully guilty of
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          2  malfeasance. So, what are we going to do about that?

          3    You just said you want the current law to come

          4  back, and the current law is not a good law.

          5                 MR. SCHWARZ:  That was focusing on

          6  the narrow subject that Amy had mentioned, and

          7  focusing on the candidates. I think we'd like to

          8  have a chance to think about the treasurer question,

          9  and submit something back to this Committee on that.

         10                 I mean, I've heard the same problem

         11  about treasurers going back a while, and I think

         12  frankly, treasurers are different than candidates.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  I think

         14  you're right.  I am glad you want to work on that

         15  because I know that we're working on some packages,

         16  and we'd much rather do it with you as usual to

         17  determine what would be a fair way to hold somebody

         18  liable, and clearly there are taxpayer funds

         19  involved but as I said before, there's some

         20  ramifications to that.

         21                 My last question regards page four,

         22  you said, "If a campaign finds and remedies a

         23  potential violation before it's found by the CFB,

         24  penalties can usually be avoided."

         25                 What is the standard for that?
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          2  Because I think many of us have had the situation

          3  where you've taken a contribution from someone who

          4  may have  --  there's no way of you knowing right

          5  away whether that person has maxed out already, or

          6  perhaps, they weren't a registered pack, and there

          7  was no way of knowing that until recently, and then

          8  we would refund the money and still be liable for

          9  penalties.

         10                 So, what are the standards there?

         11                 MR. LOPREST:  Again as we talked

         12  about before, these are issues of fairness and

         13  balancing the competition, but if you accept a

         14  contribution that is say over the limit from a

         15  person, our software has a number of triggers to

         16  alert you to that.

         17                 If you discover that on your own, and

         18  refund the money, then you won't be assessed a

         19  penalty.

         20                 If it uncovered as part of our

         21  standard review because you have taken a money that

         22  is prohibited by the law, even though you've

         23  refunded it, you did have the benefit of that, maybe

         24  a benefit that your opponent or someone's opponent

         25  didn't have.
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          2                 So, you could be assessed a penalty,

          3  of course, if you refunded the money, it is a much

          4  reduced penalty.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  You just

          6  said two different things.

          7                 First you said, if we refunded the

          8  money, there would be no penalty, and then you said

          9  if you're targeted, it is a much reduced penalty.

         10                 MS. LOPREST:  No, no, I guess I  --

         11  if you're collecting your contributions, and you're

         12  looking through them, and you realize this was a

         13  corporation, and your campaign says, "Oh, we're

         14  going to refund that money," then there would be no

         15  penalty.

         16                 If you submit your disclosure

         17  statement, and in the course of our review, our

         18  audit staff discovers that you have accepted a

         19  prohibited contribution of any type, and informs the

         20  campaign that you have accepted this prohibited

         21  contribution, and then the campaign refunds it, then

         22  you would be assessed a penalty, but it would be a

         23  much reduced penalty, than if you had just kept the

         24  money.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  Okay, I mean
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          2  that seems fair.  As long as when we discover our

          3  own mistake and fix it, we're not liable for that

          4  penalty.

          5                 MS. LOPREST:  No, that's true.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  Okay, all

          7  right.  I don't want to take up much more time, so

          8  thank you.

          9                 MR. SCHWARZ:  Mr. Chairman, could I

         10  add one fact that I left out of my testimony because

         11  it bears on your question about timing, and in

         12  general, I think this Board has a reputation for

         13  being fair, and for protecting taxpayer money better

         14  than any other body in the country doing campaign

         15  finance, specifically better than the Federal

         16  Election Commission.  Someone gave me a fact,

         17  comparing us and the FEC.

         18                 Now, in the 2004 Presidential

         19  Election, eight campaigns got $28 million in

         20  taxpayer funds through the public matching program

         21  run by the FEC, and as of today, they have completed

         22  only two audits.

         23                 Whereas, as you saw in the statistics

         24  with us, we have the Draft Audits for 90 percent and

         25  they have completed over 50 percent from`05.  So, at
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          2  least, we're doing on the timing things

          3  substantially better than the federal body that's

          4  meant to be looking after public funds.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Well, thank you

          6  for that.

          7                 We appreciate that but we don't

          8  expect any less.

          9                 MR. SCHWARZ:  No, you shouldn't.

         10  That's my job, and it's our job, but it's all of our

         11  jobs, you're right.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  So we appreciate

         13  the fact that you're doing a lot better than the

         14  federal government is.

         15                 But that's what we're here for, so,

         16  to help you do even better, so that you can come

         17  back the next time and tell us that 75 percent are

         18  complete, or something like that.

         19                 I want to follow up on some of the

         20  things they talked about.

         21                 First of all, the issue that Council

         22  Member Recchia mentioned about having meetings on

         23  record.

         24                 I don't see any problem with that

         25  whatsoever. Having one of your auditors, and as I
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          2  mentioned, I'll repeat it as many times as I can get

          3  it in, although as you see, there's no one from the

          4  media here at all.  We didn't do any press releases

          5  or anything.  I don't know if they would have wanted

          6    --  this is really an open discussion about really

          7  trying to fix things. This is not about trying to

          8  publicize some sort of hearing.

          9                 So, the issue about meetings in

         10  person, I think I mentioned for the record, that I

         11  was a tax auditor for ten years, and we did audits

         12  for the largest firms, and largest banks and we sat

         13  down with their accountants, with their

         14  representatives, sometimes for days at a time, and

         15  we had lists, I shouldn't say we, I had a list of

         16  questions, many, and I went through a question at a

         17  time, and they either were able to provide the

         18  information, or they said they would get back to me

         19  with the information or not.

         20                 I don't see the problem, in fact,

         21  we're going to be hearing from Mr. Warren Ruppel who

         22  we want to thank in advance, who's from the state

         23  society of CPA's, who's going to be testifying a

         24  little later, and I'm sure the Campaign Finance Bad

         25  Board will have some representatives here to hear
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          2  this testimony. So, I don't see the problem.  I

          3  really don't, about protecting the public or

          4  creating this sort of image of dark, evil, and

          5  somehow some behind the scenes meeting, I don't

          6  think it exists.

          7                 You could have a meeting, you put it

          8  on tape if you're concerned, and you go through item

          9  by item in person, and either they're able to answer

         10  it or not.  It's just efficient. You keep on

         11  mentioning  --  somebody keeps on mentioning

         12  protecting taxpayer money.  Protecting taxpayer

         13  money is not only protecting the contributions, the

         14  amount that the Finance Board gives a candidate,

         15  whoever that candidate may be as you'll hear from

         16  more of my questioning, protecting taxpayer money

         17  means also running things efficiently because you

         18  don't want to waste taxpayer money needlessly.

         19                 I'm not interested in debating it

         20  unless you want to give me satisfaction.  I do not

         21  see any reason why when you ask questions, they

         22  can't come in to meet with your audit staff that

         23  does a good job, and let me tell you something, I

         24  think that you need a lot more resources.  You

         25  mentioned ten people, I think that's not enough.
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          2  It's no wonder that there's a problem.  You need

          3  more people.

          4                 Either that or to be able to have

          5  like a sometimes, maybe, certain agencies are able

          6  to hire  --  it's hard to hire people temporarily

          7  for a job like this.  But, whatever is necessary,

          8  with ten people during election season, it's

          9  impossible.

         10                 I would say that it would be

         11  contradictory for you to be able to say to me that

         12  you're able to respond in an efficient manner with

         13  so few people on staff.  Something doesn't jive.

         14                 So, you need more people, but those

         15  meetings are something that we are very serious

         16  about.  I think that it will ultimately help, it's

         17  not going to hurt anybody, you'll be able to get the

         18  information, it can be on tape, it can be on record,

         19  nothing hidden, and this way you check off whatever

         20  you got or not.

         21                 Do you want to argue, or not?

         22                 MS. LOPREST:  We don't want to argue.

         23    I just want to point out something that you

         24  brought up.

         25                 I mean, we do actually in the Draft
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          2  Audit, in addition to informing the campaigns about

          3  this training that we have, we also say, "If you

          4  have questions about this audit, please call and

          5  arrange a time to talk with the auditor in your

          6  Campaign Finance Liaison  --  Candidate Services

          7  Liaison--

          8                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Yes.

          9                 MR. LOPREST: --  and discuss you

         10  audit."  So I mean, we do--

         11                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Well let me

         12  reiterate, I understood what you said the first

         13  time.

         14                 The gentlemen to your right, I forgot

         15  who's in charge of the audits, everybody so far who

         16  has mentioned anything about the audits has said

         17  that they have been helpful, but there's no

         18  replacement to being able to sit with somebody in

         19  person and showing them Page X, you have question

         20  number one, here's Page X, question number two, Page

         21    --  you know what I mean?  It's just a practical

         22  thing.

         23                 So, I don't see the contradiction.

         24  You want to sit down and get the information, then

         25  that's the way it should be.
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          2                 The theme, I may say, is that theme

          3  that I keep on hearing from the members, including

          4  myself, is that if the Campaign Finance Board wants

          5  to serve as an educational, as one of an agency

          6  that's trying to encourage compliance, not as an

          7  agency which is trying to catch somebody doing

          8  something wrong, then these are some of the things

          9  that will really help because by sitting down in

         10  person there's no replacement for that.

         11                 Now, you keep on talking about

         12  protecting, again, taxpayer money, there are two

         13  separate issues.  One has to do with ethics, whether

         14  somebody violated something, and the other has to do

         15  with the money, and this is something woven

         16  throughout the testimony and questions that have

         17  been going on because the issues of ethics, whether

         18  someone is in violation of something is a separate,

         19  entirely separate, from the issue of taxpayer money,

         20  because you mentioned, I think the Executive

         21  Director, you mentioned something about auditing

         22  every candidate thoroughly.             Now again,

         23  we're going to hear from the representative of the

         24  CPA Society, but this is a perfect example. You

         25  sometimes ask for documentation, every piece of

                                                            86

          1  COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS

          2  documentation for certain periods.  You ask for the

          3  same thing.

          4                 As an example, okay, let's just take

          5  whatever you want.  Let's say there's an expense

          6  that relates to meals, where let's say in paying the

          7  parties for volunteers or something, did the parties

          8  18 times, and they list that.  They list the

          9  expenses at certain restaurants, you ask them, "What

         10  is this expense?"  You will ask them for

         11  documentation 18 times for the same thing.         No

         12  one, to my knowledge, does audits that way, and when

         13  someone mentioned about the original structure of

         14  these audits, the only people that do audits like

         15  that are people who are trying to bill their clients

         16  and make a lot of money for something like that.

         17  But, no one who's in their right mind goes ahead and

         18  asks for documentation of the same thing over, and

         19  over, and over again.

         20                 What's normally done, and I don't

         21  want steal your thunder on the testimony, but I

         22  think what's normally done is you take a sampling of

         23  something, you look at the sample, you decide

         24  whether there is enough documentation and then it's

         25  fine.  If not, then you ask for additional
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          2  documentation.

          3                 Colleagues that I've spoken to, as

          4  well as practitioners, and I can give you specific

          5  examples at another time, have shown me cases where

          6  you ask for every piece of paper for the same thing

          7  for five or six times.  The same exact thing,

          8  instead of taking a sampling.

          9                 Can you explain that?

         10                 MR. LOPREST:  Well I mean, I think

         11  that I don't know what cases your specifically

         12  talking about, but the reason that we don't do the

         13  sampling is that unlike transactions in a business

         14  where you buy stamps every day, you know, you do a

         15  sample of those business, transactions in the

         16  campaigns are inter- related.

         17                 For example, you can't look at

         18  someone's mailing expenses and not see the postage

         19  samples to make sure that the money is really

         20  legitimately spent.  We do ask you to document, to

         21  the penny, the public funds that you receive.

         22                 Also, the other issue is that

         23  campaigns are all run differently.  Every campaign

         24  is run in a different way.  I would guess that your

         25  first campaign is run differently from your second
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          2  campaign.  All the campaigns are different to create

          3  a sampling methodology  --  most businesses are run,

          4  while each business is different, they're run in

          5  basically the same way.            Campaigns are run

          6  differently, and so to create a sampling methodology

          7  to try and say, "We're going to pull out just every

          8  fifth transaction," really wouldn't catch the whole

          9  picture.

         10                 For example, when we're looking at

         11  contribution documentation, one of the cases that's

         12  talked about in the testimony, was a case where

         13  someone took a large contribution of $10,000,

         14  bundled it into $250.00 increments, and tried to get

         15  public funds based on that.  They were prosecuted

         16  and found guilty by a jury, and if we had done a

         17  random sample of those contributions, you never

         18  would have found that grouping of what were found to

         19  be, I can say it here because it was found by a

         20  jury, fraudulent contributions, and so, the way

         21  campaigns are run, the way that we review those

         22  documentations requires maybe a different way of

         23  looking at the audit process, then the audit process

         24  for a government agency or a business because

         25  campaigns are run differently, and because these
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          2  transactions are interrelated.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  I don't agree

          4  with you at all.  I'm sorry.  Because what you're

          5  saying would mean that you believe that your agency

          6  has a much more responsible task or responsible

          7  obligation than any agency in the entire country,

          8  and that's bizarre.

          9                 We're talking about, again, if the

         10  issue is ethics, it's a separate issue.  If the

         11  issue is money, the

         12  time that your auditors, who you don't have enough

         13  of, are spending  --  going through every piece of

         14  paper for no reason, when they could be doing the

         15  audits more efficiently, and it probably drive them

         16  out of their minds as well, I won't speak for them,

         17  having to do this methodology that you say is just

         18  ridiculous, it's ridiculous.  We can talk about it

         19  for three hours.  I can bring in a variety of things

         20  that don't fall into the category, when you respond,

         21  you pick one item like that, it doesn't even make

         22  sense even if you're right.  Even if you're right.

         23  This is not about catching people.  This is about

         24  trying to encourage, educate, and make sure that

         25  there's compliance.           This is not about
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          2  trying to find that one thing that somebody who's a

          3  devil may have done wrong, okay?  Because there's

          4  always going to be somebody who's interested in

          5  doing things wrong.  This is about trying to get to

          6  the bottom of things in an efficient way where there

          7  is a public trust, and going through every document

          8  does not make sense.  I'll be happy to go through

          9  specific examples with you, but it doesn't make

         10  sense.  It just doesn't.

         11                 MS. CAMPOLO:  Councilman, just let me

         12  make a point here.  Again, I'm the oldest one on

         13  this panel, that's been here the longest time.  The

         14  most long- serving.

         15                 We are not only auditing campaigns

         16  for public funds, but we're auditing campaigns, this

         17  is a competitive environment.

         18                 I mean, if we did a sampling of your

         19  opponents campaign, and we did a sampling of your

         20  campaign, and your campaign was 100 percent correct,

         21  everything wonderful, and your opponent we only did

         22  a sampling of, and there was some egregious issues

         23  with that campaign that we never uncovered, and that

         24  guy went on the win the election, don't you believe

         25  that that is unfair to you as a candidate number
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          2  one, to the taxpayer who is funding the program,

          3  number two, and to the public and voters at large,

          4  who do not have the benefit of the information that

          5  they should have because we do audit and we do look

          6  at campaigns before the election, as well as during

          7  the election, that the taxpayer and public do not

          8  have that information at their fingertips?

          9                 I mean, I think one of the reasons

         10  why we look at every transaction is that campaigns

         11  themselves are often interrelated, and we look at

         12  expenditures to make sure that your opponent is not

         13  getting a leg- up on expenditures from another

         14  campaign.

         15                 So, we look at every single

         16  transaction to ensure that we are dealing with you

         17  fairly, we are dealing with you fairly in a

         18  competitive environment, and for those that using

         19  taxpayer money, we're dealing in a competitive

         20  environment fairly, and making sure that those

         21  taxpayer dollars, four- to- one matching dollars are

         22  accounted for to the best of our ability.

         23                 I mean, we've always taken the

         24  opinion that we believe that the public would never

         25  suggest less oversight of government spending.
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          2                 I mean, they always want more

          3  oversight of government spending, as we believe we

          4  fill that bill.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  I believe that

          6  you fit that bill as well.  I believe you fit that

          7  bill, but we're talking about egregious violations,

          8  and if you are speaking to the public, you're not

          9  going to be able to make me out to be someone who

         10  doesn't give a hoot about government money.  I care

         11  about government money as well, and so do my

         12  colleagues.

         13                 The issue is not the public trust.

         14  The issue is not wasting government money.

         15                 The issue is your Board doing things

         16  in a sensible, logical, reasonable, responsible way,

         17  and there is no lack of ethics, responsibility or

         18  efficiency, and I won't accept that by suggesting

         19  that instead of going through every single paper,

         20  and wasting millions of the taxpayers dollars, by

         21  trying to make some guy, maybe who is wrong, find

         22  him and lynch him so that your agency can look good,

         23  that has nothing to do with the public trust.

         24                 What it has to do with is accepted

         25  auditing and accounting principles, which you
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          2  mentioned earlier, and I don't believe for a minute

          3  that they IRS or other agencies, this Federal

          4  Election Commission, or any other government agency

          5  doesn't give a hoot about what goes on with

          6  government responsibility.

          7                 If you want to work together with us,

          8  with the Council, this is about coming up with the

          9  methodology that makes sense, that ensures that the

         10  public understands that what you're doing is not

         11  driving people away from running for office.  You're

         12  talking, too, about people in office, they're not

         13  here, the hundreds of people who don't even want to

         14  bother running because of the stuff that you put

         15  them through.

         16                 So, don't suggest for a moment that

         17  we're here in some way to try to get rid of some of

         18  the things that are in place to protect the public.

         19                 We want to protect the public.  We

         20  want to protect the public.  We're term limited.

         21  Many of us aren't going to be in office any more.

         22  But we want to make sure that when you're doing what

         23  you're doing, which we appreciate, that it's not

         24  done at length, and it's not done in a way that's

         25  driving people out of their minds, and there's no
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          2  excuse for that.  We want to save the City money as

          3  well.

          4                 MR. SCHWARZ:  Could I have a general

          5  response to those comments, which is, isn't the

          6  question, the ultimate question, whether achieving

          7  the goal of doing over 90 percent of the Draft

          8  Audits within the one year, is appropriate

          9  performance?             If that's appropriate

         10  performance, and it is better than any other

         11  campaign finance body, and it's much better than our

         12  history, if that's appropriate performance, then I

         13  don't think that the important philosophical

         14  discussion that you and the Deputy Director were

         15  having matters that much because if we're doing them

         16  in roughly the time period that they ought to be

         17  done, then it's hard to say it's something terrible

         18  about looking at every jot and tittle, instead of

         19  sampling, and I think maybe the other very important

         20  point you made is when you responded to my question

         21  to the Director of Auditing, and he said there were

         22  ten, and you said ten sounds too few to you.

         23                 I think it would be worth just

         24  hearing from Mr. Peele whether he agrees that if it

         25  were  --  I mean, this is a double question Julius.
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          2  One, if it is possible to hire for a government

          3  auditing job more people, would that be desirable?

          4                 Second, are there difficulties in

          5  hiring really first- rate people for this particular

          6  government auditing job?

          7                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Before you ask

          8  him questions, I'd like to respond to what you said.

          9                 MR. SCHWARZ:  Yes.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  The answer is

         11  no.

         12                 The fact that you are performing

         13  those audits quickly is wonderful, and the fact that

         14  you're performing them quickly is so wonderful that

         15  if you did it the right way you would be performing

         16  them even more quickly.

         17                 Telling me that you did 90 out of

         18  100, that should prove that what you're doing is

         19  right, does not add up.  I'm sorry.

         20                 What it says to me is that your

         21  auditors are doing a great job with limited

         22  resources, and if that is the case, that would mean

         23  that they could do it even better  --  more quickly,

         24  given reasonable audit standards, and we're going to

         25  hear more about that later.
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          2                 In terms of your other question, I

          3  don't  --  you can ask him whatever you want.

          4                 MR. SCHWARZ:  Well I mean, you raised

          5  the issue of "are ten enough," and Julius, I'd like

          6  you to say, first, if you could get good people,

          7  would you agree that it would be better to have more

          8  than ten?

          9                 Secondly, what are the experiential

         10  difficulties there have been in hiring more people?

         11                 MR. PEELE:  Well, we do have problems

         12  getting the type of people that we would like to

         13  work on our various audits.             So, we do

         14  have difficulty in hiring people, but usually we end

         15  up getting the number that we need.  After each

         16  election, I should say, before the next election, we

         17  evaluate our situation, and we determine how many

         18  people we think we'll need for the upcoming

         19  election, and that's something that we will be doing

         20  shortly for the 2009 election.

         21                 So the staff problem will increase

         22  over the ten that we have now.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Council Member

         24  Addabbo can you  --  how's your baby doing?

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO:  Good,
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          2  thanks.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  For the record,

          4  for the record?

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO:  Baby's fine,

          6  for the record, thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Good.

          8                 Could you vote on the Intro. Number

          9  502- A, yes please?

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO:  For 502- A,

         11  I vote aye.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Thank you.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO:  Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Back to campaign

         15  finance.

         16                 So, it's clear to me that the Board

         17  would not consider auditing, sampling, or analyzing

         18  less than 100 percent of a candidates expenditures

         19  to determine if the candidate is substantially in

         20  compliance.  Is that true?

         21                 MS. LOPREST:  Well, I guess maybe

         22  there's a misnomer what we mean by 100 percent of

         23  their expenditures.

         24                 We don't audit every single

         25  expenditure.  What we do is, we audit that if you
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          2  received $50,000 in public funds, that we audit

          3  enough expenditures to show that you spent that

          4  $50,000.

          5                 Now, if you had $50,000 in public

          6  funds, and spent $150,000, we would audit the

          7  $50,000.

          8                 We do however, to make sure that the

          9  disclosure is correct, look at your bank statements

         10  to make sure that you've reported all of your

         11  transactions, and the reasons for that are because

         12  one, to ensure that the public disclosure is

         13  accurate, and two, to make sure that you have not

         14  reported some disclosure that will send you over the

         15  expenditure limit, which is an important aspect of

         16  the program.

         17                 So, I guess I just wanted to clear

         18  that up.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Okay.

         20                 MR. SCHWARZ:  Just responding on my

         21  behalf.

         22                 I think I'd feel uncomfortable with

         23  saying we're satisfied with a substantial

         24  compliance.  I think we ought to be seeking

         25  compliance, and then I do get back to the question
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          2  of how long it took.  If it took two years or three

          3  years, then I'd say, "Well, you know, you've got to

          4  have a little flex."  But if it's taking something

          5  that seems to be a reasonable time, then I think

          6  it's appropriate to look for compliance.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  You didn't

          8  convince me, but I'm happy you repeated it again.

          9                 MR. SCHWARZ:  It was a new

         10  phraseology.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Yes, but

         12  everyone knew what you were doing.   Everybody knew

         13  what you were doing.

         14                 So in those cases, can you explain to

         15  me, in those cases where someone is non-

         16  participating, why would you audit  -- do the audits

         17  the same way?

         18                 MR. SCHWARZ:  I think that is a

         19  different question, and it's a fair question, but

         20  frankly, I haven't thought about sufficiently.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  There's a young

         22  man that's sitting there with a pen, I think, I

         23  don't know, does he work for the agency?  With the

         24  beautiful red tie raising a pen.

         25                 Does he work with you?
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          2                 MS. LOPREST:  Yes, he does.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Is her permitted

          4  to come

          5  to the desk?  Because he explained something to me

          6  last time

          7  that I--

          8                 MS. LOPREST:  It's in our testimony,

          9  exactly what he explained last time.  We added to

         10  our testimony.  We elevated him to the written

         11  testimony.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Oh, all right.

         13  Yes, it was very good.

         14                 What was the explanation?

         15                 MS. LOPREST:  That in addition to the

         16  disclosure that we talked about, but also there are

         17  a number of triggers in the law that non-

         18  participants trigger, the bonus to get additional

         19  matching funds, whether or not  --  even outside of

         20  the bonus, whether or not you're limited to the 25

         21  percent cap.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  What was the

         23  second thing?

         24                 Who's limited to the 25 percent cap?

         25                 MS. LOPREST:  Now you're limited to
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          2  getting  -- you get 25 percent of the cap of

          3  matching funds, unless your opponent raises or

          4  spends 30 percent or you send the Statement of

          5  Agreement letter in there.

          6                 So, its the bonus where additional,

          7  actual

          8  funds--

          9                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  I understand.

         10  So, if you had an example, in theory, where a

         11  candidate ran that was non participating, that had

         12  no opponent, can you explain why you would do a 100

         13  percent audit?

         14                 MS. LOPREST:  Well again, because of

         15  the public disclosure.

         16                 I mean, one of the important aspects

         17  of the program is that  --  and that's one of the

         18  reasons why I think the City Council added non-

         19  participant disclosure to the law, is because the

         20  disclosure regime that the Board has is so widely

         21  respected, and to ensure that the disclosure that

         22  appears on our website is accurate, that is the

         23  reason why we would audit.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  So, the

         25  disclosure meaning what?
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          2                 Can you elaborate?  I don't get that

          3  part.

          4                 MS. LOPREST:  When you file your

          5  disclosure reports, you report that your spent this,

          6  that, whatever, all of your expenditures, and that

          7  gets put up on our website to ensure that that is

          8  accurate, we audit to make sure that that is

          9  accurate.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  I don't want to

         11  spend the time right now.  Maybe some other time

         12  we'll discuss that, but I still don't understand

         13  that part.  Maybe I'll speak to the guy with the red

         14  tie, who's has to be nameless.

         15                 I wanted to give him his time in

         16  fame, but you just would not let him up here, that's

         17  all.  It's okay, we're going to subpena him for the

         18  next meeting, that's all.

         19                 MS. LOPREST:  That's our Director of

         20  Candidate Services.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  He was very good

         22  last time, so I just want before we go to Council

         23  Member Dickens, we did the vote, I want to apologize

         24  publicly to Carol Campolo for raising my voice to

         25  you because there's no excuse for that.  I'm very
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          2  sorry.  By the way, I don't take anything back.

          3  Whatever I said, I mean fully without any

          4  reservations, but anger is non excusable, and I was

          5  just getting angry and I raised my voice. So I

          6  apologize to you publicly.

          7                 MS. CAMPOLO:  Councilman, first of

          8  all, I'm Italian, so I understand all about raising

          9  your voice, that's the first thing.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  But I'm not, so

         11  I don't.

         12                 MS. CAMPOLO:  You're very close

         13  though, but the second thing is that if I in some

         14  way conveyed to you that I was impugning your

         15  integrity or anything, that is not, absolutely

         16  anything that I wish to convey.  That couldn't be

         17  further from the truth.

         18                 So, I apologize to you if in fact you

         19  took it that way.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  I'm very sorry.

         21  I appreciate it.  I don't want to allow my

         22  colleague, Council Member Vallone, say it couldn't

         23  be because we all know how much integrity you have.

         24                 Council Member Dickens.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS:  Thank you so
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          2  much, Mr. Chair.

          3                 Maybe I don't understand what the

          4  Campaign Finance Board is about then because it is a

          5  maze of audits, and the fears the CFB generates

          6  amongst candidates and amongst my colleagues, and

          7  me.

          8                 Is there anybody that's on this Board

          9  or any staff member that has either been involved in

         10  a campaign, been a candidate, been a treasurer to

         11  really know exactly what it is to run a campaign?

         12                 MS. LOPREST:  The short answer to

         13  that question is that over the course of time, I

         14  mean, currently none of our board members are

         15  candidates or former candidates, but over the course

         16  of the history of the Board, yes there have been

         17  Board members who have either been candidates

         18  themselves, or have been involved with campaigns,

         19  and many of the staff members have been involved

         20  with campaigns.  I guess none of them have run as a

         21  candidate, but most of them have been involved in

         22  running campaigns.

         23                 So, yes.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS:  Because you

         25  know, you do generate fear, and most candidates feel
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          2  that you are out to get them because you keep saying

          3  about protecting public funds, which is very

          4  important, and that is really what the City Council

          5  does as well.  We protect public funds on all

          6  agencies, and most candidates feel that you approach

          7  an audit with them as if you're out to get them.

          8                 I said that before, and I still stand

          9  by that.                 MS. LOPREST:  And I

         10  apologize, I explained to you that I don't think

         11  that that's the attitude, and I understand that

         12  anyone  --  you know, the word audit is a scary word

         13  for everyone, and it's not the intention.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS:  No, it's not

         15  the use of the word audit.

         16                 MS. LOPREST:  No, no, I mean I

         17  understand the whole process is scary, and I mean,

         18  it's not the intention.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS:  It's the

         20  letters that we get, and it's the attitudes

         21  frequently of some of the staff members when they do

         22  make calls.

         23                 If you sit down and talk to many of

         24  the campaigns, you'll find out what I'm exactly

         25  talking about.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  I just want to

          3  reiterate that that suggestion, and I'm not going to

          4  use different phraseology, I just want to say that

          5  the suggestion that was brought up about the in

          6  person meetings, which I think go a long way to

          7  dispel that notion, if they had an opportunity on

          8  record to come in and explain what's going on, I

          9  think  --  Council Member Vallone.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  Thank you

         11  again, Mr. Chair.

         12                 I like to explain, the Assembly broke

         13  my rib during a basketball game this week, and I

         14  can't laugh, so stop. Would you just calm down?

         15                 MR. SCHWARZ:  It hurts, it hurt.  I

         16  fell off a bike one time, and just it's awful.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  It's

         18  horrible, it's horrible, and it's another reason we

         19  should secede by the way, but that's for another

         20  day.

         21                 Regarding retroactive changes, I

         22  haven't heard those mentioned, and let me reiterate

         23  what everyone said.           Whenever I've called

         24  to deal with you, especially Mr. Schwarz, I mean,

         25  you've been very, very helpful.
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          2                 So, it's very hard for us to figure

          3  out why the dichotomy exists between some of the

          4  hell we've had to go through, and how helpful you

          5  are at other times.  It's something that we can't

          6  understand.

          7                 In the past, there's been at least

          8  attempted changes that have been retroactive.  And

          9  again, most of my experiences with you have been

         10  fine, but I have that one horror story and it kind

         11  of skews you for a long time.

         12                 But it was about a retroactive

         13  change, and I hate to go through it again, I'll do

         14  it very briefly.  But I had a fundraiser at a

         15  baseball game.  It was the third one I'd had, and

         16  then I got a letter saying none of that is matchable

         17  because a baseball ticket is a gift of intrinsic and

         18  enduring value.

         19                 I had to hire an attorney, pay

         20  thousands of dollars to explain that a baseball

         21  ticket is not a wash, it's not intrinsic and

         22  enduring, and eventually that's so obvious, it's not

         23  funny, but eventually you decide that's the case,

         24  but the greater point here is I've had previous

         25  fundraisers at games, no one said anything, other
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          2  candidates have  --  and then, you attempted to

          3  change the rules after the fundraiser.

          4                 I would even have no problem if you

          5  just said, "You know, from now on in the future, a

          6  baseball ticket is intrinsic and enduring."  I don't

          7  agree, but fine, if that's what you want to do,

          8  that's what you want to do.

          9                 What right would you have to change

         10  the rules in the middle of the game, without giving

         11  any notice?  And has that been addressed, and will

         12  that ever happen again in the future?

         13                 MS. LOPREST:  I mean, the question is

         14  that, I mean we ask questions of the candidates, and

         15  perhaps they were in the same or similar situation

         16  did not happen, or wasn't questioned in the past,

         17  and that's not really applying law.

         18                 Retroactively, I mean, I think we're

         19  trying to apply the law, and maybe they didn't ask

         20  the question before.  I guess if did a sampling, it

         21  would probably happen more frequently because we

         22  wouldn't look at everything, and you would have no

         23  basis for saying that  -- when we ask the third

         24  time, we did it the third time.

         25                 We tried not to have that happen, but
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          2  as so far as when the law changes, obviously, we do

          3  communicate with the campaigns, and try to explain

          4  the changes in the law.

          5                 We do try, after every election

          6  cycle, to improve our training materials, to make

          7  sure that situations that  -- you know as I said,

          8  campaigns are different, and in every election some

          9  new  --  something new happens that nobody ever

         10  thought about.

         11                 You know, a candidate tries to do a

         12  different kind of fundraiser that no one ever

         13  thought about, and there needs to be new guidance

         14  and explanation, and then either it comes through an

         15  Advisory opinion, or it comes through better

         16  explanations in our handbooks and materials that we

         17  train candidates.  But we try not to retroactively,

         18  we're trying to apply the law in a consistent

         19  manner, and sometimes that happens.

         20                 MR. SCHWARZ:  I think that occurred

         21  before I was the Chair, and I'd have a hard time

         22  answering your question as abstractly as it's on the

         23  table because, certainly if the Board, I'm now

         24  talking about the Board members, if the Board

         25  members are convinced that something is really new,
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          2  and is not just that it's new, but that something

          3  different had been said by the Board previously, I

          4  know the Board would be extremely careful about

          5  applying something retroactively.

          6                 If something is new but it hasn't

          7  been ruled on previously, then you know, I'm just

          8  speaking for myself, I would say, "Well, always

          9  there are new things going to come up, and you're

         10  got to address them."

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  Just to

         12  clarify, this wasn't new by any stretch.

         13                 As I said, I alone had had two

         14  previous fundraisers that received matching funds,

         15  and many other candidates have had the exact same

         16  fundraiser, and never had a problem with matching

         17  funds.  So, there's nothing new about it.

         18                 So, not only was it not something

         19  new, but the interpretation that you tried to apply

         20  retroactively, was wrong. A baseball ticket is not a

         21  gift of enduring value under the definition of the

         22  Legislature or any definition.

         23                 So, this was something that had

         24  happened, matching funds had been granted, not to

         25  just myself, but many other people, the policy was
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          2  attempted to be changed for the wrong reason.

          3                 But let's assume it was the right

          4  reason.  Let's assume you just wanted to decide for

          5  whatever reason this is no longer matchable.

          6                 Would you be able to do that in the

          7  future?  Would you be able to, after a candidate has

          8  raised funds, say they're not matchable any more

          9  because you've changed the rules?

         10                 MS. LOPREST:  I think that in this

         11  case and I mean in other cases, sometimes we ask

         12  questions about things, and that's what happened in

         13  this case.

         14                 You were aware that we asked

         15  questions, we said that we wanted to ask questions

         16  about this.  I don't think that any invalid claim

         17   --  it is never, until you get your Final Audit,

         18  there's always potential to validate claims, and I

         19  think that that's what happened in this instance.

         20  We saw something that the auditors felt merited

         21  questioning, it was the first time we had seen it,

         22  and we questioned it.

         23                 As Chairman Schwarz said--

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  It's not the

         25  first time you had seen it, okay?
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          2                 As you said to Chair Felder, you go

          3  through everything with a fine-tooth comb, whether

          4  that's good or not good.  So, it's not the first

          5  time you had seen it.  That's my point, that you had

          6  seen it many, many times, and still decided to take

          7  sanction.

          8                 I can understand if somebody did a

          9  circus, or something you've never seen before.

         10  That's clear, but this was something you'd seen, in

         11  my case alone, two previous times, and by the way, I

         12  mis-stated, I didn't get matching funds.  I never

         13  applied for them, but I was told  --  I would not be

         14  eligible. I, after my first election, I never took

         15  matching funds, but I was told I would not be

         16  eligible for them.

         17                 MS. LOPREST:  I mean, we ask the

         18  questions, I don't think, as Chairman Schwarz said,

         19  we don't apply the law retroactively, and when you

         20  answered the question, as you acknowledged, we said,

         21   "Yes, you were right," in this case.

         22                 MR. SCHWARZ:  Just to ask a question

         23  of you.

         24                 Why did you need a lawyer in that

         25  situation, as opposed to just coming and talking?
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  I have a

          3  long series of correspondence with my treasurer at

          4  the time, and your  --  it wasn't you of course, and

          5  the rule was not going to be changed until I finally

          6  hired a lawyer.

          7                 MR. SCHWARZ:  I see.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  And it took

          9  months, and months, and months, and legal fees, and

         10  it's one of the reasons I didn't take matching funds

         11  down the road because it just wasn't worth the

         12  effort, which is not what you want to have happen.

         13                 You want to have people cooperate,

         14  and again, especially since you're been on board,

         15  Mr. Schwarz, I believe things have been better and

         16  you have been very helpful.

         17                 It's just, and I'm probably going

         18  well over my time, just wondering whether there is

         19  any prohibition down the road for a retroactive

         20  change?

         21                 It might be something we wanted to

         22  discuss, and again, in dealing with you guys, it's

         23  always been pleasant, always been  --  I appreciate

         24  the work you do.  We've just had these incidents

         25  that we're trying to eliminate to get to be the best
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          2  we can be.

          3                 It's the same thing we do at my

          4  hearings with the Police Department, I think they're

          5  doing great, but we have the hearings, and we always

          6  try to learn from what we're doing and then make it

          7  better.

          8                 So, thank you all for the work you

          9  are doing.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  I just was

         11  informed by the Sergeant- at- Arms that we only have

         12  until one o'clock, and we have a number of people

         13  signed up to speak.

         14                 So I am not asking this as a

         15  question, I just want to mention that we have a

         16  whole bunch of questions maybe the Counsel will

         17  furnish them directly to the Board, those that we

         18  haven't been able to get to, and the other issue

         19  that we haven't discussed really is who's auditing

         20  the Campaign Finance Board.

         21                 I know you mentioned earlier that you

         22  hired a outside consultant firm.  Among the

         23  discussions we've had with some of the good

         24  government groups, as well as some of the candidates

         25  and professionals, is the possibility, for example,
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          2  of the State Comptroller, or some other government

          3  agency auditing the Campaign Finance Board, so that

          4  you'd have an outside entity that's not in any way

          5  subject, in any way, to the Campaign Finance Board

          6  doing some audit on a regular basis, which I think

          7  would be helpful.

          8                 If there's anything that you wanted

          9  to mention before we call the next witness?

         10                 MS. LOPREST:  I just wanted to

         11  actually say that the, I mean, we are subject to the

         12  audit of the Comptroller.  I mean, the City

         13  Comptroller.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Yes, but that's

         15  not good because he may get money from you.

         16                 MS. LOPREST:  I mean, they do  --  I

         17  mean, right at this moment as we sit here, they're

         18  auditing our contracting procedures.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Right, so I

         20  mean, I repeat it again, I don't know if that makes

         21  sense.  If let's say, assuming in theory, if let's

         22  say I wanted to run for City Comptroller, and I may

         23  want to take matching money, for the City

         24  Comptroller himself, for his agency to be one under

         25  someone who may be a candidate, to get money from
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          2  you, I think may not be that great.               I

          3  would prefer anyway, it be someone who doesn't in

          4  any way receive any benefit from you.

          5                 MS. LOPREST:  That's why we hired

          6  this outside firm because people--

          7                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  And that's why I

          8  think a better idea, instead of your hiring an

          9  outside firm, would be to find  --  I'm not sure who

         10  that is, but may be better to have the State

         11  Comptroller or some other entity, I don't know who

         12  it is, maybe the Attorney General or something,

         13  someone that we can work on together that you would

         14  find acceptable, and would make sense, someone who's

         15  independent to do the audits.

         16                 I certainly don't think that even if

         17  you put out an RFP, I don't think that you should be

         18  hiring the auditors to do the audits of Campaign

         19  Finance.

         20                 I think it can be done by someone

         21  else outside, whoever it is, and I don't have any

         22  question that the audit was done right or good.

         23                 I'm just saying that it should be a

         24  regular thing where maybe some other entity does the

         25  audits.
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          2                 Is there anything else?

          3                 MS. LOPREST:  No.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  So we thank you

          5  very much for coming. Again, I hope some of you will

          6  remain to hear Warren Ruppel, who works with the

          7  firm of Marks, Paneth and Shron, who's representing

          8  the New York State Society of CPA's, and I thank you

          9  for coming.

         10                 MR. RUPPEL:  Okay, my name is Warren

         11  Ruppel.  I am with the accounting firm of Marks,

         12  Paneth and Shron.  I am representing the New York

         13  State Society of Certified Public Accountants.  I am

         14  the chair of the Government Accounting Committee,

         15  and I appreciate the opportunity to provide you some

         16  background information, which I understand is the

         17  desire of the Committee on Government Auditing

         18  Standards.

         19                 As a way of a little bit of

         20  background, Government Auditing Standards are part

         21  of a  --  one component of a number of different

         22  ways that auditing standards are prescribed.

         23                 Basic auditing standards are

         24  prescribed for accountants or auditors by the

         25  American Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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          2  Those government auditing standards incorporate many

          3  of those auditing standards, but the government

          4  auditing standards are actually prescribed by the

          5  Comptroller General of the United States.

          6                 There's also separate auditing

          7  standards for public companies, prescribed by the

          8  Public Company Accounting Oversight Board.

          9                 There are international auditing

         10  standards.

         11                 So, there's really a wide variety of

         12  auditing standards that we can talk about, but the

         13  ones I think you're most interested in are the

         14  government auditing standards prescribed by the

         15  Comptroller General.

         16                 Those standards really provide

         17  guidance to auditors for financial audits,

         18  attestation audits which are, kind of, compliance-

         19  related audits, and performance audits to see if

         20  government agencies are performing sufficiently and

         21  effectively. They are broken down into general

         22  standards, field work standards, and reporting

         23  standards.  I'm obviously not going to go through

         24  all of them.  I did bring a copy of  --  all the

         25  government standards are incorporated into one

                                                            119

          1  COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS

          2  document.  This is the 2003 version of Government

          3  Auditing Standards, it's about 400 pages, so I'm not

          4  going to go through all of them.

          5                 They are currently in the process of

          6  being revised.  There's a 2007 revision that will

          7  become effective next year.

          8                 Some of the items that I wanted to

          9  touch on briefly was that the Auditing Standards

         10  require auditors to be independent of the entities

         11  that they are auditing, that auditors are required

         12  to use professional judgement, which means that they

         13  need to be skeptical of the auditee that they are

         14  auditing, meaning that they neither assume that the

         15  person is not telling the truth, or that they assume

         16  that the person is telling the truth.  They just

         17  approach their work skeptically, and that their

         18  judgement is required because in order that they'll

         19  never be able to obtain absolute assurance that what

         20  they are auditing is in accordance with whatever set

         21  of rules that they're auditing against.

         22                 Auditors on the Government Auditing

         23  Standards also have to have a certain level of

         24  technical knowledge.  They're required every two

         25  years to have 80 hours of continuing professional
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          2  education.  Twenty- four of those 80 hours must be

          3  specifically related to the areas that they are

          4  auditing, so there is a commitment to have adequate

          5  technical training, and the organizations performing

          6  audits need to have an appropriate system of quality

          7  control, which means that among other things, they

          8  have to have their own policies and procedures in

          9  place to make sure that their auditors are

         10  performing quality audits, and for entities that are

         11  performing audits in accordance with these

         12  standards, then they must have a peer review every

         13  three years, which means that there's another firm

         14  that comes in to basically audit the auditors in

         15  making sure that they're complying with their system

         16    --  their own internal system of internal control.

         17                 In terms of the field work, the field

         18  work standards and reporting standards, I'm not

         19  going to go  --  I mean, they get fairly technical,

         20  so I'm not going to go through those in depth, but I

         21  would open it up for questions if you have some

         22  areas that you'd like me to address specifically.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Thank you very

         24  much, and again, thank you very much for coming to

         25  share some time with us.
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          2                 Based on the Board's testimony about

          3  the nature of their audits, do you think it would be

          4  inappropriate for them to apply the gap standards to

          5  their audits?

          6                 MR. RUPPEL:  Well, in terms of gap,

          7  gap really talks about accounting principles--

          8                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  I'm sorry, the

          9  audits standards, I'm sorry.

         10                 MR. RUPPEL:  No, I don't think it

         11  would be inappropriate for them to apply auditing

         12  standards.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  So let me ask

         14  you again, we had this discussion earlier.  I'll

         15  follow up with it.

         16                 Is that, when you do audits of

         17  whatever it may be, whether it's governmental

         18  agencies or other things, how often do you audit

         19  every document?

         20                 MR. RUPPEL:  That would usually be

         21  more the exception than the rule.  Audits are risk-

         22  based, should be risk based if the auditors do them

         23  correctly, where the auditor can focus their time on

         24  the areas that present the greatest risk, and

         25  there's always going  --  audit risk is composed of
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          2  a few different components but there's a risk

          3  associated when testing, where even if you audit

          4  something 100 percent, the auditor may draw an

          5  inappropriate conclusion from one of the items that

          6  they audited, that they tested, and it could still

          7  be wrong, and to the extent that you're trying to

          8  audit something for completeness, obviously,

          9  auditing only the items that are recorded will not

         10  give you any assurance that what is being reported

         11  is actually complete.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  So that would

         13  mean maybe that in theory, even if you audited

         14  everything, you're still not getting everything,

         15  right?

         16                 MR. RUPPEL:  That's correct because

         17  as I mentioned before, the auditing standards are

         18  not geared to provide absolute assurance for what's

         19  being audited.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  So for example,

         21  would you say you do a sampling of certain things

         22  when you audit?

         23                 Is that fair to say that you take a

         24  sample of certain items, and you analyze them?

         25                 MR. RUPPEL:  Well, there are
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          2  different audit procedures.  Some audits may be done

          3  more analytically.  If you were testing payroll

          4  expense, and you know the number of employees, and

          5  you know their average salary, you can kind of get

          6  to the overall payroll expense by not doing detailed

          7  sampling. In other cases, auditors will look at

          8  larger item, 100 percent individually significant

          9  items, we would call them, and then maybe do a

         10  sampling of all the other smaller items.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  So for example,

         12  that's very interesting to me.

         13                 When would you do a 100 percent?

         14                 You just said something, I missed it,

         15  I wasn't concentrating.

         16                 MR. RUPPEL:  You would do a 100

         17  percent if you took a population that you were going

         18  to sample from, and you knew that the larger  --

         19  you could cover a large part of that percentage of

         20  the population by just looking at the larger items,

         21  you might audit all the larger items, so you'd be

         22  auditing the larger items 100 percent, and then you

         23  might do a sample on the smaller items.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  But if you had

         25  an item that's recurring, let's say you did a three-
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          2  year audit, okay, and you had an item that recurs

          3  every six months or so, and let's say you decided

          4  you wanted to analyze that particular item, would

          5  you analyze every six months, all that item, for all

          6  three periods? Would you go ahead and take randomly

          7  one six month period, and analyze it thoroughly, and

          8  then see if there's some problem, say, "Oh, this is

          9  a problem, can you give me more detail on this?"

         10  Then if there's still a problem, ask for another

         11  period?

         12                 How would that come about?

         13                 MR. RUPPEL:  Well, let me preface by

         14  saying that all audits are done a little bit

         15  differently based upon the judgement of the auditor

         16  involved, so I can't prescribe a cookbook way of

         17  doing a particular audit, but certainly for an item

         18  that the more typical example is rent expense.  If

         19  you know someone has a three- year lease for a

         20  particular facility, and you know the monthly rent

         21  expense and you tested it once, and you have no

         22  reason to believe they're not paying it, then it

         23  would seem that your audit procedures for a full-

         24  year or a three- year period basically consists of

         25  taking that monthly rent and multiplying by the
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          2  number of rents that your trying to figure.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  So, in a perfect

          4  world where you want to protect the legitimacy of

          5  that expense to the greatest extent you could, would

          6  there be any point in repeatedly auditing that rent

          7  expense over, and over, and over, and over again?

          8                 MR. RUPPEL:  As a general matter,

          9  probably not, although given the nature of a

         10  particular audit, there may be circumstances where

         11  that would be wise.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  All right look,

         13  let me just say, I'm not trying to catch you, I'm

         14  just trying to prove my point is right, obviously,

         15  and I'm using you to prove my point.

         16                 So, I understand that there's no  --

         17  there's always exceptions to the rule, but in terms

         18  of trying to, I think you said it clearly, and I was

         19  just trying to emphasize it, that in general, and as

         20  a general rule, if there's an expense and you take a

         21  sampling of that expense, and you audit it and

         22  analyze it as best as you could, and you think that

         23  it's okay, then you assume that it's okay.  You may

         24  decide that you want to take two sample months, or

         25  something like that, but taking it over, and over,
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          2  and over again normally does not do much for that.

          3                 In general, who audits  --  in the

          4  private industry, who audits the auditors?

          5                 In other words, let's say your firm

          6  as an example, if they're auditors, who would audit

          7  them to make sure that their audits are being

          8  performed well?

          9                 MR. RUPPEL:  Well, there's a number

         10  of different ways that we would be subject to audit.

         11

         12                 The first one is that peer review

         13  process, which I mentioned, where we engage another

         14  firm to come in every three years as required by our

         15  professional standards to review our system of

         16  quality control.

         17                 We're also, that's the main way that

         18  we're audited, but there are some specific types of

         19  engagements that we do, and this is really more on

         20  the federal level, where a federal agency may come

         21  in to audit our compliance with requirements.

         22                 Example, for HUD assistant projects,

         23  HUD would come in periodically to take a look at

         24  some of the HUD audits that we've done, and make

         25  sure that we're doing what we're supposed to be
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          2  doing.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Do you know of

          4  any government agency that requires, even if the

          5  goal is protecting public funds, that would not

          6  accept a sampling of certain things, or anything,

          7  that would not use sampling as a methodology to try

          8  to determine whether a particular item requires

          9  further investigation?

         10                 MR. RUPPEL:  I'm not aware of any

         11  specifically, no.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Does your firm

         13  handle audits with other government agencies?

         14                 I mean, this is not about your firm,

         15  so I should stop saying that, and I'm sorry.  Again,

         16  Generally Accepted Audit Standards, I'm assuming

         17  that many of the firms that you are familiar with

         18  are retained by clients that have audits with

         19  government agencies, and again, I know I'm harping

         20  on it, I just want to bring this thing home.

         21                 When they do their audits, the audits

         22  that those agencies do perform, not the ones that

         23  your audits do, do they abide by Generally Accepted

         24  Auditing Standards?

         25                 MR. RUPPEL:  In some cases they do.
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          2  I know the City Comptroller's Audit Bureau performs

          3  audits in accordance with government auditing

          4  standards, and not in all cases is that the case.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  And in those

          6  cases, when it's not the case, so can you give me an

          7  example, like who does it so they develop their own

          8  auditing standards?

          9                 MR. RUPPEL:  Well, sometimes they

         10  would have a -- they develop their own handbook or

         11  audit guide.  I mentioned HUD before.  I know they

         12  have their own audit guide.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Right, but

         14  that's public, that audit guide would be public as

         15  to what that is.

         16                 MR. RUPPEL:  Yes, it is.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Okay, so it is.

         18  That would be public, and when those audits are

         19  done, again, you just said the City Comptroller

         20  accepts Generally Accepted Auditing Standards?

         21                 MR. RUPPEL:  The City Comptroller's

         22  Audit Bureau performs audits in accordance with

         23  government auditing standards.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Right, so it's

         25  interesting because earlier, I think, someone
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          2  mentioned from the Board, that the City Comptroller

          3  is auditing their contracts, so they probably  --  I

          4  say this in jest, they are probably not happy with

          5  that audit because that audit accepts Generally

          6  Accepted Auditing Standards, even though the Board

          7  does not.

          8                 So, we certainly have to find

          9  somebody else to audit the Board because we don't

         10  want to loose the public confidence in the Campaign

         11  Finance Board.

         12                 Council Member Dickens, do you have

         13  any questions?

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS:  Just one

         15  quick  --  you were here, Sir, and thank you for

         16  your testimony  --  you were here, Sir, when I asked

         17  the Board did they follow the Generally Accepted

         18  Audit Standards, and they said they deviate from it.

         19  They didn't want to use the word deviate, but they

         20  used the word, "they changed it," for a variety of

         21  reasons.

         22                 Would it be fair to say, and I just

         23  quickly looked through there because that's a large

         24  document, but on page 12, Chapter 1, Sub 17, just

         25  quickly looking through it, it said, "entrusted with
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          2  handling public resources," which clearly would be

          3  what CFB does, so would it be fair to say that they

          4  could or should be using Government Auditing

          5  Standards rather than making up their standards as

          6  they go along?

          7                 MR. RUPPEL:  Well, let me answer it

          8  this way, that if you read other sections in there,

          9  you'll see that the whole focus or the reason for

         10  Government Auditing Standards to be developed are to

         11  ensure the transparency and disclosures, and

         12  protection of public resources, and those auditing

         13  standards are used by all  --  either governments or

         14  non- profits that receive federal funds, and are

         15  subject to certain other audit requirements.

         16                 They are used for private contractors

         17  who have government contracts.  There's a wide

         18  variety of audits that are performed of recipients

         19  of federal money, and other government money that

         20  have audits that are performed in accordance with

         21  those standards.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS:  So too, in

         23  order to ensure transparency of public funds, then

         24  it would be a good idea to use Government Auditing

         25  Standards rather than to make up standards as you go
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          2  along, which are not transparent.

          3                 Is that a fair statement?

          4                 MR. RUPPEL:  Well, I think that's a

          5  fair statement, although--

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS:  Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  I want to thank

          8  you again for coming.  It was very, very difficult

          9  to get somebody during a work day from private

         10  industry to come to testify.

         11                 So, we appreciate very much your

         12  being here.

         13                 MR. RUPPEL:  You're welcome.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  I just want to

         15  thank you again very much for coming.

         16                 We are now back to the Intro. 502-A,

         17  and we've been joined by Council Member Seabrook,

         18  who was busy with another hearing across the street.

         19    We appreciate your coming.

         20                 Whenever you're ready to vote, maybe

         21  you should give him the document.  He has to have

         22  this in front of him.

         23                 How do you vote on this thing?

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK:  Mr.

         25  Chairman, I vote aye.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER:  Thank you very

          3  much.

          4                 With that, the hearing is concluded,

          5  and I want to thank the Campaign Finance Board for

          6  being here, and we look forward to continued

          7  discussion with them.

          8                 Hearing over.

          9                 (Hearing concluded at 12:55 p.m.)

         10

         11  Written testimony read into the record.

         12  Testimony Submitted by:  Citizens Union of the City

         13  of New York.

         14                 Citizens Union, a century old good-

         15  government organization, is a strong supporter of

         16  efforts to increase disclosure of lobbying and

         17  fundraising activities.  Transparency in these areas

         18  is a vital tool in the fight to ensure that our

         19  elected officials act in the public interest, and

         20  are not improperly influenced by lobbyists and

         21  donors.

         22                 However, the information required

         23  must be consistent with the intent of the law, and

         24  not compromise reasonably expected rights to

         25  privacy.
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          2                 Citizens Union supports positive

          3  steps taken in 2006 to increase disclosure

          4  requirements, and we commend the work of the

          5  Governmental Operations Committee, and the City

          6  Council in this area.

          7                 Today, we lend our support to

          8  Introduction 502 which would clarify and improve

          9  lobbyist disclosure requirements.

         10                 Citizens Union supports the following

         11  three major elements of Introduction 502:

         12                 Requiring the inclusion on the

         13  lobbyists' registration of the business and home

         14  address of lobbyists and those of their spouses and

         15  domestic partners, as well as the name and home

         16  address of their unemancipated child if a campaign

         17  contribution is made in the unemancipated child's

         18  name, to assist the CFB in identifying non-

         19  matchable campaign contributions;

         20                 Clarifying that lobbyists are not

         21  required to list the names of their unemancipated

         22  children in annual registration forms, unless and

         23  until a campaign contribution is made, at which time

         24  the lobbyist would be required to disclose the names

         25  and home addresses of their unemancipated children
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          2  within 48 hours after the contribution is made in

          3  the unemancipated child's name;

          4                 Requiring that the home addresses of

          5  lobbyists be kept confidential, along with those of

          6  their spouses, domestic partners and unemancipated

          7  children.

          8                 Thank you for the opportunity to

          9  provide written testimony on this matter.

         10                 We look forward to continued efforts

         11  to improve the City's disclosure laws, and ensure

         12  that lobbyists and fundraisers do not gain unfair

         13  access to elected officials and other government

         14  employees.

         15                 (Hearing concluded at 12:55 p.m.)
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